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ATCO L t d  

C o r p o r a t e  P r o f i l e  

POWER GENERATION 

ATCO Power is an independent power producer with 

operations in Canada. Great Britain and Australia. 

Including its coal-firedgenerating plants in Alberta, 

ATCO Power has 2400 MW of generation capacity 

operating and under construction around the world. 

ATCO Electric and its subsidiaries deliver electricity to  

customers in northern and east-central Alberta as well 

ATCO Group is one of Canada's premier as parts of the Yukon and the Northwest Territories. 

ATCO Gas distributes natural gas throughout Alberta to  
corporations, Alberta-based with a industrial, residential and commero'al customers. 

worldwide organization of companies LOGISTICS A N D  ENERGY SERVICES 

and 6000 employees actively engaged ATCO Pipelines provides natural gas transportation 

services to  producers, major industrial users and gas 

in Power Generation, Utilities, Logistics distribution companies in Alberta. ATCO Midstream 

provides natural gas gathering, processing and storage 

and Energy Services, Technologies services to  the natural gas industry in Alberta. 

and Industrials. 
ATCO Frontec provides project management and technical 

services for the resource, telecommunications, 

transportation, ut i l i ty and defence sectors. 

TECHNOLOGIES 

ATCO Singlepoint provides the people, the business 

processes, and the systems t o  deliver "turn-key" 

customer care, call centre, and billing services to  

utilities, large municipalities, energy retailers, and 

other organizations. ATCO I-Tek builds, integrates, 

operates and supports software applications and 

technology infrastructure for its clients. 

INDUSTRIALS 

ATCO Structures manufactures, sells and leases modular 

buildings to  over 100 countries around the world from 

manufacturing facilities in Canada, the United States, 

Europe, South America, Australia and the Middle East. 

ATCO Noise Management provides complete noise 

redum'on services for industrial facilities. ASHCOR 

Technologies markets fly ash and other coal-combustion 

products. Genics Inc. is a manufacturer of 

environmentally friendly wood preservation products. 

ATCO 



ATCO L t d  

i n a n c i a l  h l i g h t s  

CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL RESULTS 
(Mdl ioni  of Conodian Dollari exceptperihoie data) 

Year Ended December 31  

Financial 

Revenues 

Earnings attr ibutable t o  Class I and Class I1 shares 

Totalassets 

Class I and Class I1 shareholders equity 

Capital expenditures - net  

Cash flow from operations 

Class I Non-Voting and Class I1 voting Share Data 

Earnings per share 

Diluted earnings per share 

Dividends paid per share 

Equity per share 

Shares outstanding 

Weighted average shares outstanding 

CONSOLIDATED QUARTERLY RESULTS 
(Unaudited) 

(Mi l l ioni  of Conodion Dollaii except pershore doto) 

Revenues 

Three Months Ended 

March 3 1  June 3 0  September 3 0  December 3 1  Tota l  

2000 773.8 588.1 616.9 1097.2 3,076.0 

1999 668.7 524.8 482.7 698.6 2,374.8 

Earnings a t t r i bu tab le  t o  2000 39.1 20.0 22.1 31.5 112.7 

Class I and  Class I1 shares 1999 35.3 21.8 18.7 24.9 100.7 

Earnings per Class I 2000 1.31 0.68 0.74 1.06 3.79 

a n d  C lass I I sha re  1999 1.18 0.72 0.63 0.83 3.36 

Di luted earnings per Class I 2000 1.30 0.67 0.73 1.05 3.75 

and  Class I1 share 1999  1.17 0.71 0.62 0.82 3.32 

(I) Becouse ofseosonol fluctuatiom. paiticulariy in the ut i l i ty operations, 

quorteiiy eorningi ore no t  indicative qiful lyeor results. 



FIVEYEAR RETURN ON $100 INVESTMENT 

The following compares thefive year cumulative 

shareholder return on $lOOinvested in Class I Non-Voting 

shares and Class 11 Voting shares of the Corporation on 

December31, 1995 with the cumulative total . . return of the 
~ . .  

TSE 300 Stock Index, assuming reinvestm:Mi . of , dividends. 

1 ATCO CLASS1 $277 22.6% 



Despite difficult conditions i n  many of our operations, 2000 was a 

record year for ATCO Group and marks increased growth for the 13th 

consecutive year. 

Our core business strategy continues to  be defined by operational excellence 

with four fundamental elements: 

Transparency in  ourpeople and business processes 

producing genuine teamwork: 

Ronald D. Southern. 
Current achievement: Co-Chairman ond Chief Executive Officer 

Long-term growth with a strong balance sheet, allowing technology development, expansion and 

asset acquisitions; 

Commitment to change, world class company skilir and best practices rejuvenated by well develonod 

people cyitems. 

You are a l l  aware of the transition taking place between us and, while it probably is not for us t o  say, 

it is an effective process resulting in  a seamless transfer o f  chief executive leadership for the 

years ahead. 

The second, equally seamless transition we encourage share owners t o  note, is  the changing profile of 

our operations. Just five years ago (1996) 93% of ATCO Group's earnings were generated by our three 

regulated uti l i ty companies - ATCO Gas, ATCO Electric and ATCO Pipelines. 

I n  2000 our rryuldled ulililies' eallliligs amounted to  70% of the Group's to ta l  profit. We do expect 

our utilities t o  continue to  grow, however, they wi l l  decline as a percentage of ATCO Group's earnings 

i n  the future. 

While the determined efforts within our enterprises have not changed, the rules and regulations 

for natural gas and electricity i n  the marketplace have shifted dramatically under deregulation. 

However, the early positioning of ATCO Power with a highly skilled team t o  develop competitive 

independent power projects i n  otherjurisdictions such as the United Kingdom and Australia, has 

created a well experienced and internationally successful company that is now capitalizing on the 

current opportunities unfolding i n  North America. Having just  announced i ts 11th Canadian plant, 

ATCO Power continues to  repiace former uti l i ty earnings with premier performance from highiy 

competitive new power plant projects. 

Our progress, i n  respect t o  both leadership and the deregulation transition, is  a great testimony t o  our 

Directors'guidance and counsel coupled with the Group-wide fundamental support of our executives 

who bring great talent and determination t o  our achievements. 



In th is  regard, we consider the  bundling of  our principal operating subsidiaries 

under five new Managing Directors t o  be an organizational change, t ied equal 

f i r s t  wi th our f inancial performance, as the most notable of  our 2000 

achievements. Their reports, together with those of  our President and our 

Chief Financial Officer, exemplify our commitment t o  a simple organization - 

driven by leaders with a f i rm grip and effective working teams i n  which 

situational leadership abounds as a result of simple, easily 

communicated plans. 

As share owners of the  past wi i l  know from our previous Letters t o  you, we are 

skeptical o f  the  relentless push - heard from every quarter - t o  use radical, 

widely unproven, even capricious techniques seeking and demanding 

transformation and immediate spectacular results. 

Noncy C. Southern. 

Co-Choinnon on4 Chief E~ecut ive  Officer 

We believe our evolving pre-emptive strategies and pragmatic logic agreed annually between Directors 

and Senior Officers, w i l l  continue t o  deliver good innovation and growth. 

A notable example o f  this steady approach t o  chanqe is the emerqence of  a l l  our companies with top  

safety records and leadership i n  environmental matters, which is formally described i n  our Managing 

Directors' reports. 

As t o  the  future, there can and w i l l  be adversity t o  be managed. This year has been i l lustrative of tha t  

- but regardless of  the circumstances, our share owners can take comfort i n  the  ATCO Group's track 

record, our people, organization, and business processes, confident tha t  regardless of the  

circumstances, ATCO wi l l  deliver positive differentiating results from our people's sharp emphasis rm 

the  excellence of  their  performance. 

We wish t o  thank, on behalf o f  a l l  share owners, the  people of  ATCO Group, our Officers and Directors 

for their extraordinary spir i t  and contribution of  their minds, bodies and hearts tha t  makes the  

submission of th is report such a pleasure. 

Respectively submitted, 

Sincerely. 

R. 0. Southern 

Co-Chairman & 

Chief Executive Officer 

N. C. Southern 

Co-Chairman & 

Chief Executive Officer 

ATCO 
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2000 was another year of record performance for the ATCO 

Group. Our focus on improved performance and growth of 

ATCO Group's operations was strengthened by the 

introduction of a new organizational structure and the 

appointment of five Managing Directors. Each Managing 

Director has overall bottom-line responsibility for one of 

our streamlined business Groups. I n  ATCO Ltd., these 

Groups are Power Generation, Utilities, Logistics and 

Energy Services, Technologies and Industrials. 

The ongoing deregulation and unbundling o f t h e  gas and electric 

industries worldwide continues t o  have a significant impact on the  

corporation, wi th  the  restructuring of our regulated businesses i n  our 

home province of Alberta and the  development o f  opportunities i n  the 

deregulating globalenergy industry. 

Our Power Generation Group had a robust year i n  theconstruction, 

commissioning and operation of new independent power plants i n  Alberta 

and around the globe. Including i ts  coal-fired generation i n  Alberta, 

Power Generation owns 240OMW of generat~on capanty, operating and 

under construction. making it a growing player o f  significancein the 

international power generation market. 

Since theannouncement o f  deregulation i n  Alberta, our Power Generation 

Group has commissioned four new power plants wi th  totalgenerat ing 

capacity o f  651MW, and has another 444MW under construction for 

completion by 2002. Power Generation was also active outside Alberta, 

wi th  successful completion of its $75 mill ion Bulwer Island plant i n  

Queensland, Australia early i n  2001 and construction underway on a 

260MW cogeneration plant i n  Saskatchewan. 

The Util it ies Group is moving i ts  focus t o  gas and electric distribution 

operations, selling i ts  interconnected generating assets t o  Power 

Generation and putt ing i ts  gas production properties up for sale. 

We expect tha t  further unbundling of"Uti l i t ies"wi l l ,  over time, move it 

essentially t o  a "pipes and wires" operation reducing the  regulatory 

complexity of the gas and electric businesses. 

Winning the  support services contract for Canadian Forces deployed i n  

Bosnia-Herzegovina, a f i rs t  i n  Canada, opened up a new area of 

operations for our Logistics and Energy Services Group. Other Long-term 

contracts cur ient ly in  late stages o f  negotiation include extension of the 

North Warning System contract. held since 1988, and airside and 

groundside services t o  the NATO Flying Training Program a t  

Moose3aw. Saskatchewan. 

C. 0 .  (Croighton) Two, President ond Chief Operating Offrrer, ATCO Ltd. 

The strong performance o f  our midstream business was a reflection of t he  

high rate o f  util ization o f  t he  gas processing capacity (over 90%) and the 

effective performance a f  the gas storage operations. 

The pipeline operations attained record natural gas throughputs of 1.3 

bill ion cubic feet per day as a result of a major growth program. 

Theiechnologies Group has more than 350 IT professionals wi th  expertise 

i n  applications and technology infrastructure. This Group, 

with state-of-the-art technoiogy-based customer care, call centre, and 

bill ing services, is welt positioned t o  serve emerging deregulated 

energy markets. 

During 2000, the workforce housing and relocatable shelter operations of 

t he  Industrials Group were driven by the  performance o f t h e  Canadian and 

Australian subsidiaries. Key projects were cornpietion of the 1,760 person 

complex for t he  Athabasca Oil Sands Project i n  Canada, the 500 person 

expansion of housing for t he  Millmerran Power Projectin Queensland and 

major projects for international oi l f ield customers i n  Eastern Europe. 

Confirmed growth of generating capacity i n  North America and Europe 

creates substantial market opportunities for ATCO Noire Management. 

Orders received i n  early 2001 promise strong performance i n  this 

growth business. 

Two start-upsin the  Industrials Group, ASHCORTechnologies and Genics. 

are the Latest exampies o f  innovatian and enterprise i n  ATCO Group laying 

the  foundation for future prof i tabi l i tyand growth. ASHCOR has developed 

a successful business selling f ly  ash from ATCO generating plants i n  

Alberta t o  markets i n  western Canada. Genics, a manufacturer of 

environmentally friendly wood preservation products, received approval 

from the  U S .  Environmental Protection Agencyfor i ts  unique"Cobra Rod' 

product, opening up entry in to  the huge wood preservation marketin the 

United States. 

I believe you wi l l  f ind that  each Group is focused an creating value for  our 

share owners by continued strong performance and growth i n  a l l  our 

businesses. 

Craighton 0. Twa 

President and Chief Operating Officer 
ATCO Ltd. 

ATCO 
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The creation of the Power Generation Group has brought 

together an organization of 600 skilled employees whose 

expertise and experience i n  the development, 

construction, financing and operation o f  coal and gas-fired 

power plants provides a platform for the delivery of steady 

growth to  our share owners. 

AT0 mwr and its portnerr cammirrioned the 48OMW Joffre wgenemtion plant in 

December, 2WO bringing much needed eienricai power to the province of Alberta. 

Power Generation w i l l  continue t o  apply and bui ld upon i ts  proven track 

recordin health, safety and environmental issuesin a l l o f i t s  

construction and operations endeavours. This allows us t o  fu i f i l l au ,  

mandate t o  be a major contr ibutor t o  the  sustainable and prof i table 

growth i n  the  ATCO Group o f  companies. 

We Look forward t o  expanding our reputation as a iuccesiful. 

The Power Generation Group was created i n  2000 by combining 

ATCO Power's independent power business wi th  ATCO Electric's 

"Alberta Power" legacy generating plants. 

The reorganization further enhances Power Generation's abi l i ty t o  

streamline operations for improved effiflency as wel l  as allowing us t o  

allocate new resources for  project development. 

Our  Power Generation development team is focused on i t s  target  

markets of Canada, the  United States. t he  United Kingdom 

and Australia. 

world-class developer and owner o f  an increasing number o f  high quality 

independent power and cogeneration projects i n  Canada and selected 

world markets. 

G.K. (Gary) Bauer 

Managlng Director 

Power Generation 



ATCO Power's generating plants achieved excellent levels o f  availability 

i n  both British Columbia, where power f romi ts  50%owned, 12OMW 

McMahon Cogeneration Plant i s  sold under a long-term power purchase 

arrangement wi th  BC Hydra; and i n  Alberta where i ts  plants, t he  85MW 

Pii~nrose (40% owned): t he  43MW Poplar Hi l l  (80% owned): and the  

43MW Rainbow Lake (80% owned) sold power t o  on-site customers as 

wel las t o  the  Alberta Power Pool. 

Commissioning o f  t he  480MW Joffre Cogeneration Project, where ATCO 

Power has a 32% ownership interest, was completed i n  December 2000. 

The plant has run wel land has brought much needed capacity t o  the  

Alberta system. 

Commercial negotiations were finalized and engineering and site 

preparation workwas begun on two cogeneration plants being 

developed for  t he  Athabasca Oil  Sands Project: t he  Muskeg River Mine, 

a 170MW cogeneration plant where ATCO Power w i l l  have a 56% 

ownership interest. and the  Scotford Upgrader. 150MW cogeneration 

plant, where ATCO Power w i l l  have an 80% interest. The in-service date 

for these plants i s  late 2002. 

I n  May 2000, ATCO Power and SaskPower In ternat ional lnc.  announced 

tha t  they would jo in t ly  develop and own a 260MW gas-fired 

cogeneration plant a t  t he  Potash Corporation o f  Saskatchewan's Mine a t  

Co~y,  Saskatchewan. ALL the  power produced w i l l  be purchased under a 

Long-term contract by SaskPower Corporation. Design and engineering 

work has begun: orders for  t he  major equipment have been placed and 

commercial operations are slated for t he  fourth quarter of 2002. 

I n  the f i rs t  quarter o f  2001, ATCO Power announced it wi l l  proceed with, 

and own 100% o f two  more power projectsin Alberta, a 92MW gas-fired 

project a t  Valleyview and a 32MW hydro project a t  the Oldman River Dam. 

Decontrolissues i n  Ontario's deregulation process caused development 

work t o  cease during t h e  year on the  550MW gas-fired combined cycle 

Lakeview New Generation Project i n  Mississauga. Ontario. The ATCO 

Group i s  jo in t ly  working w i th  Ontario Power Generation Inc. t o  identi fy 

power purchasers and alternative s i tes in  Ontario for  th is  project. 

The Alberta Government proceeded wi th  the  Power Purchase 

Arrangement auction, which sold the  r ights t o  the  output o f  ATCO 

Electric's"Alberta Powd'generat ing stations: Batt le River, Sheerness, 

Rainbow and Sturgeon. The Batt le River and Rainbow power purchase 

arrangements were purchased by power marketers, and the  Sheerness 

power purchase arrangement remains wi th  the  Alberta Balancing Pool. 

The 18MW Sturgeon stat ion d id  no t  attract any bids and became a 

merchant plant awned and operated by ATCO Power. 

ATCO Electric's HR Milner generating stat ion was no t  included i n  the  

auction because of  t he  uncertainty of coal supply, caused by t h e  

station's coalsuppl ier go ing i n to  bankruptcy. On January 3, 2001, 

AIL0 Power and the  Balance Pool Admir l i i l rdlor announced an 

agreement whereby the  Balance Pool Administrator would 

purchase the  stat ion from the  Power Generation Group a t i t s  net  

G. K. (Gory) Bouer. Monoging Dimtor. Power Generation 

book value. ATCO Power wi l lcont inue t o  operate the  st-':-- '--L- 
Balancing Pool on a cost-of-service basis. 

UNUED KINGDOM 

The 1000MW gas-fired combined cycle power station at  Barking which 

ATCO Power operates and has a 25.5%interest, experienced a nine-week 

shutdown o f  Block One t o  repair a crackin the i team turbine rotor and a 

five-week precautionary shutdown of Block Two t o  test for similar 

problems. No problems were detected i n  BlockTwo, however, t he  shutdown 

allowed ATCO Power t o  perform generalmaintenance one year i n  advance of 

their schedule, thereby improving availabilityfor 2001. Following the 

shutdowns, the Station ran successfully for t he  remainder o f the  year. 

ATCO Power continues t o  ieek"greenheld" cogeneration and independent 

power opportunities i n  the  United Kingdom. 

AUSTRALIA 

The 180MW Osborne Cogeneration plant, i n  which ATCO Power has a 50% 

ownership interest, achieved excellent availability leveis during the  year. 

Construction o f  t he  33MW electrical and 55MW thermal  cogeneration 

project a t  British Petroleum's Bulwer Island Queensland ref inery 

continued i n  2000, wi th  f i na l  completion expected i n  the  f i r s t  quarter o f  

2001. ATCO Power w i l l  have a 50% ownership i n  the  Project wi th  Origin 

Energy Limited fol lowing completion. 

IRELAND 

I n  January 2000, Aughinish Alumina Limited announced tha t  it would 

proceed un'th ATCO Power and Bord Gais Eireann on the  development of a 

310MW gas-fired cogeneration fac i l i tyat  i ts  existing aluminium ref inery 

i n  County Limerick, Ireland. 

ENVIRONMENT AND COMMUNITY 

Protection o f  t he  environment i s  a corevalue and pr ior i ty  t ha t  guides our 

decision making and our on-going operations. The Power Generation 

Group believes the  success of our businessis also based on strong 

relationships wi th  the  communities we serve. We are active supporters o f  

community projects, bo th  through corporate contr ibut ions and support 

o f  orir employees' communityinvolvement. 

ATCO 



AT@ EleCEric semMce 

personnel live and 

work in the mere Hen 

200 Alberte 

communities weserve. 

Our people a n  on-call 

24 hours a d a ~  335 

days ayear, ensuring 

our deliverysystcm is 

safe rind reliable. 

ATCO Ltd. 

U t i l i t i e s  



The companies in  the Utilities Group, ATCO Gas and ATCO 

Electric, share a common focus: distribution of energy. 

The Group's goalis to achieve greater success for both the 

gas and electric sides of our business through efficiencies 

and economies of scale. We will also continue to develop 

joint expertise in  delivering energy to customers. I n  this 

way, we can continue to meet the growth needs of our 

service area while keeping delivery costs as Low as possible 

for customers and sustaining solid returns for share owners. 

Together, ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric have assets of 82 billion, which 

provide stable earnings and continued opportunities for investment i n  

the growing province of Alberta. Our 2150 employeesin the Utilities 

Group are dedicated t o  customer service, working continually to  

(maintain safe, reliable delivery systems for gas and electricity. 

The Utilities Group believes the success of our core delivery business is 

based on strong relationships with the communities we serve. ATCO Gas 

and ATCO Electric are active supporters o f  commr~nity projects, hnth 

through corporate contributions and support for our employees' 

community involvement. 

The high cost of energy has been a major challenge for the Utilities 

Group. This past year, customers faced unprecedented increases i n  the 

cost of both gas and electricity. With the opening of the Alliance 

Pipeline that  delivers Alberta gas t o  American markets, Albertans were 

exposed to  the supply and demand forces of the continental naturalgas 

market. High gas costs also became a factor i n  provincialelectricity 

prices. Tight supplies and growing demand for electric generation Led to  

increased use of natural gas to  fuel generating plants. As a result, 

gas-fired generating plants increasingly set the market price of 

electricity i n  the Power Pool of Alberta. 

In response, we formed a multi-company task force to  f ind ways to  deal 

with the problems experienced by our customers due to  high energy 

costs. We improved call centre service by adding staff, upgrading 

technology and extending our hours. We also expanded our natural gas 

meter reading program to  provide more actual reads, developed a 

program to  promote energy conservation, increased the options for 

payment, and developed an alternative way of collecting gas costs that  

was ultimately accepted by the Alberta Energy and Utilities Board. 

While our core business remains the transportation and delivery of 

e lwgy,  we wi l l  continue our efforts to  help customers deal with the 

challenge o f  high energy costsin the next year. We wi l ldo our utmost t o  

J. R. (Dick) Fiey, Monoging Directotor Utiiities 

help customers by keeping delivery costs as low as possible. By taking 

advantage o f the  synergies of the ATCO Utilities Group, we willcontinue 

to  make ATCO's tradition of excellence serve the best interests o f  both 

customers and share owners. 

Managing Director 

Utilities 

ATCO ELECTRIC  
The main challenge for ATCO Electric i n  2000 was continued preparation 

for deregulation of Alberta's electricity industry. Retailchoice became a 

reality for customers on January 1, 2001. Highlights of last year's 

workincluded: 

Developing computer systems to handle transactions with retailers. 

ATCO Electric reached al l  milestones on schedulefor this project and 

led the industry i n  ochieing implementation targets. 

Developing woiKpiocesses and training staff to deal with the n r .  

interactions required by retailers and customers. 

Meeh'ng on inteniive schedule ofregulatory applicatiom and 

heoringi, This included negotiating a settlement with customer 

groups on the revenue requirement for transmission coits i n  

2001-2002 Anotherpriority woi developing the ta r f f fo rde l i v~~~ 

services in the deregulated regime. 

Developing o regulated rote option to iupply energyfor customers 

who continue to buy thefull electrici@pockoge through 

ATCO Electric. 

Meeting with loiger customers who are not eligible for the reguloted 

rate option to assist them with the transition. ATCO Electric continues 

to act as default supplierforsome 1150 ofthese customers. 

although this role will be assumed by a new. non-regulated 

subsidioiy, ATCO Energy. 

ATCO 



GROWTH I N  2 0 0 0  

I n  zUUU, combined electric sales fo r  ATCO Elec l r i i  m d  ilb iubsidial.ies 

(The Yukon Electrical Company Limited, Northland UtiLities (NWT) 

Limited and Northland Util it ies (Yellowknife) Limited) were 10,392 

mil l ion ki lowatt houri .  On a sales-per-employee basis, our  productivity 

has continued to  improve by 44% since 1995. 

A T K I  Flertr ir  provides delivery serviceto more than  168,000 customers 

through our system o f  more than 56,000 kms of power lines. 

During 2000. we spent $74.8 mil l ion on new distr ibut ion facilit ies 

primari ly reflecting increased dr i l l ing and oi l f ield development and a 

further $31.9 mil l ion on transmission. 

Major transmission projects included: 

Cronberiy~Kidney. a tronsmission l ine ondsobstation that  wi l l  

connect five northern areas to the provincial grid. This project wi l l  

replace i io lo ted generoting plonts ond  support growing 

cu~ tome i lood .  

Brintnell: a substation ond  ossocioted facilities to support growth in 

the Brintnell oiifield, north of Wobosco. 

Arc0 Gor rurfomerrervire oyents continue their efforts to help customerr dm1 with 

the chollenye ofhigh energy o i t r  by offering advice on energy iovingr tips. 

For our northern operations. a highl ight o f  t he  year was succesifullq 

renewing the  franchise agreement wi th  the  City of Yellowknife for a 

10-year term. 

ATCO G A S  

GROWTH I N  2 0 0 0  

ATCO G a s  experienced another year o f  solid growth. Sales volumes 

increased to  227.0 PJs versus 205.2 PJs i n  1999 (excludes ATCO Fipelines 

sales volumes) as a result o f  strong customer growth and 4.5% colder 

than normal temperatures. 

I n  2000, ATCO Gas spent nearly $90 mil l ion on capital  projects. 

The majori ty o f  t he  expenditures were related t o  facilit ies t o  serve 

17,459 new customers and $15.9 mil l ion for t he  ATCO Customer 

Information System (ATCO CIS). Mains replacement work continued i n  

Calgary. Claresholm, and Coutts ($5.3 mil l ion): and relocation work i n  

Calgary t o  accommodate the  Deerfoot Trail expansion ($700,000). 



ATCO Gas customers benefited from an average service rate reduction of THE ENVIRONMENT AND THE COMMUNmES WE SERVE 

11% throughout the province as wel las a service refund of $48.5 mill ion. ATCO utilities croup plays a n  active role i n  the  550 communities it 
With these reductions and refunds, customers are paying less t o  ATCO Gas serves. Our continuing commitment is demonstrated through key 
i o r  delivery charges i n  2001 than they did i n  1994 in  the  South and 1993 partnerships and sponsorships, including those wi th  the  Alberta Sports 
i n  the North. ATCO Gas has been able t o  achieve these C O S ~ S ~ W ~ Y S  while Hal l  of Fame, the  Alberta Winter and Summer Games and the  Alberta 
!maintaining superior service t o  i t s  more than 810,000 customers Lung Association, as wel l  as by the  companies' programs t o  match 
throughout Alberta. employee contributions. 

In Late 2000 more than 333,000 customers i n  High River and Calgary I n  2000, ATCO Electric re-launched i t s  popular Teaching Power school 
were converted t o  the  new ATCO Customer Information System. ATCO CIS resource program, a packaye designed t o  teach children i n  grades 4-6 
replaces 30-year-old technoiogy and provides enhanced capability t o  about electricalsafety, conservation and the  production o f  electricity. 
respond t o  industry restructuring. evolving deregulation and new rate 

For the  second year i n  a row, ATCO Gas received the  Gold Champion 
structures and contracts. Migration o f  t he  remaining customer accounts 

Reoorter award from Canada's Climate Chanoe Voluntarv Challenoe and 
wi i locrur  i n  2001. 

Registry Inc. Our emissions were 12% below 1990 ieveii. Through these 
With theincreased determination t o  focus on our core business, efforts and i ts  support o f  t he  Alberta Ecotrust, ATCO Gas remains 
ATCO Gas announced i ts  in tent ion t o  se l l i ts  remaining producing committed t o  environmental protection and conservation. 
properties i n  order t o  focus on i t s  core business of distr ibut ing natural 

Our 2150 employees i n  the  Util it ies Group are committed t o  protection 
gas. Conditionalsale agreements have been signed for a l l  our producing 

o f  t he  environment, which i s  one o f  t he  Group's core values. 
properties. Thetota lva lue of the salesis $546 mil l ion. A decision by t h e  

Al l  employees have a role i n  ensuring our operations comply with 
Alberta Energy and Util it ies Board i s  expected i n  2001. 

environmental legislation, standards and company policy. 
ATCO Gas also divested i tse l f  of t he  Gas Appliance Stores i n  2000. 

Weidenti f ied this area o f  business as one tha t  was no t  i n  Line wi th  our 

core business o f  distr ibut ing natural gas. 



ATCO tipelfnes is 

constructing a 118 km 

natural gas pipeline 

to the Albion Oil 

Sands Project near 

Fort McMurray. 



The formation of our Logistics and Energy Services 

Group i n  2000 was accompanied by tremendous earnings 

growth for the Group. Logistics and Energy Services is 

comprised of ATCO Pipelines, ATCO Midstream and ATCO 

Frontec. These three companies have expertise i n  the 

management of assets, both company owned and those 

owned by others. 

Collectively our Group has vast experiencein gas gathering, gas 

processing, gas storage and gas transmission, as wellas asset 

management, logistics and northern operations. The mandate of t he  

Logistics and Energy Services Group i s  t o  util ize the  combined strengths 

within each company and lever those strengths t o  expand our 

earnings base. 

Our Group has established, as a prior i ty,  a determined and di l igent 

approach t o  the  opportunit ies unfolding i n  the  North, wi th  particular 

emphasis on the  proposed pipelines from Alaska and the  

Mackenzie Delta. 

The Logistics and Energy Services Group i s  recognized as a wel l  

respected team player through our  numerousjoint ventures with 

Aboriginal, local people and companies i n  Alaska, theYukon, 

the  Northwest Territories and Nunavut. Our Group plans t o  ut i l ize this 

northern experience and our Aboriginal relationships t o  create new 

"qreenfields" projects and capture new opportunit ies as they unfold. 

The Logistics and Energy Services Group vaiues employees and 

demonstrates this through responsive report ing structures. 

This approach minimizes levels of decision making, optimizes employee 

skills through mult i -ski l l t raining, encourages and recognizes 

outstanding service and empowers staff  t o  make business decisions t o  

effectively serve customers. These strategies have created a culture tha t  

promotes ini t iat ive and innovation i n  providing value-added customer 

iervlce, fostering h igh s ta f f  morale and resulting i n  long-term 

staff retention. 

I am pleased t o  present the  following information on the  three 

companics t h a t  comprise the  ATCO Logistics and inergy Services G~oup.  

M. M.  (Michael) Show, Monoging Director, Logistics & EnergySer*icer 

ATCO P I P E L I N E S  
2000 marked ATCO Pipelines second year of operation as an integrated, 

competitive, Alberta natural gas transportat ion company. 

ATCO Pipelines' producer customers actively brought new supply onto 

our system i n  response t o  unprecedented high natural gas prices, while 

indust r ia l  customers tha t  consume naturalgas as fuel or feedstock were 

forced t o  examine the  economics of continuing production. 

Natural gas receipts from gas plants t ied i n to  ATCO Pipelines' sy i tcm 

reached record levels during the  year, wi th  approximately 1.3 bi l l ion 

cubic feet per day (bcfd) of receipt transportat ion service f lowing a t  t he  

end o f  2000. To accommodate addit ionalvaiumes in 2000 a n d  i n  

subsequent years, ATCO Pipelines' capital  expenditures increased from 

$25 mil l ion i n  1999 t o  more than $63 mil l ion i n  2000. 

Producers continue to  aggrei i iveiy explore for natural gas reserves i n  

the  areas west and nor th  of Edmonton where ATCO Pipelines has 

infrastructure t o  accommodate future growth. In particular, record 

dri l l ing i n  thev ic in i ty  o f  ATCO Pipelines Grande Cache system has 

resulted i n  numerous requests far transportat ion service ou t  of this area 

for  2001. 

On the indust r ia l  ,market side, ATCO Pipelines is pursuing new growth 

opportunities i n  the  Fort Saskatchewan and Fort McMurray regions. 

As well, there are several proposed cogeneration and power plant 

projects planned for t he  Calgary area adjacent t o  ATCO Pipelines system. 

ATCO Pipelines prides itself on providing customers wi th  access t o  t he  

markets of the i r  choice as wel las continuing to improve  and increase 

our delivery service capabilities. 

Michael M. Shaw 

Managing Director 

Logistics & Energy Services 

ATCO 
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MAJOR PROJECTS 

Construction o f  a 118 km pipeline t o  provide naturalgas service to  the 

Albian Oil Sands Project near Fort McMurray commenced i n  June o f  

2000. A 1500m directionaldri l l  crossing of the Athabasca River was 

successfully completed during 2000, and overall pipeline construction 

wi l l  be completed early i n  2001. This project provides ATCO Pipelines 

with a foothold i n  the developing o i l  sands region o f  northwestern 

Alberta, and positions the  company to  serve other industrial projects i n  

the area. 

The 1.3 bcfd per day Alliance Pipeline, which transports naturalgas from 

gas plantsin British Columbia and Alberta t o  marketsin Chicago, came 

on-stream i n  December. ATCO Pipelines has worked closely with Alliance 

providing a significant portion of i ts line pack and pipeline purge gas. 

Working successfully with producers, ATCO Pipeiines has constructed an 

interconnection a t  Edson, Alberta, which wi l l  provide up to  70 million 

cubic feet per day of capacity for our producer customers choosing t o  

access the  Alliance system commencing Apri l  2001. The facilities t o  

transport these new volumes require more than $18 million of 

new investment. 

REGULATORY EVENTS 

A General Rate Application (GRA) for ATCO Pipelines (South) was filed 

with the  Alberta Energy and Utilities Board (AEUB) i n  December and a 

public hearing has been scheduled for late June 2001. ATCO Pipelines 

has been unabie to  negotiate rates for South Core customers and this 

GRA wi l l  determine those transportation rates for 2001 and 2002. 

The other key issues addressed i n  the GRA are unaccounted for gas 

charged to  delivery customers and ATCO Pipelines'capitalstructure and 

return on equity. 

A change i n  natural gas transmission tol l ing on TransCanada's Alberta 

system from the traditional"postage stamp" method to  receipt point 

differentiated tol l ing triggered a re-opening of ATCO Pipelines' 

industrial and producer five-year settlement. Negotiations with these 

customers resulted i n  an agreement that  was given interim approval by 

the AEUB. 

ATCO M I D S T R E A M  
ATCO Midstream has completed a highly successful year i n  the midstream 

business, which includes gathering and processing of sweet and sour 

gar, natural gas Liquids extraction, as well as gas storage services. 

The business environment for midstream companies continues t o  be 

very competitive. ATCO Midstream continues to  be extremely disciplined 

i n  i ts  evaluation o f  potential acquisitions and only grows by acquisition 

when it makes good business sense to  do so. In the meantime, the 

company continues to  generate growth from investment associated with 

i ts  existing asset base. 

Looking forward to  2001. one of ATCO Midstream's major challenges is 

from increasing costs for electricalenergy used i n  i ts  operations. 

I n  November 2000, ATCO Midstream participated i n  the Alberta Power 

Pool Auction and was successful i n  securing a portion of i ts  electrical 

power requirements for the  upcoming year. 

The NaturalGas Liquids (NGL) extraction business wi l l  also be 

challenging i n  2001 due to  high natural gas prices and close attention 

wil l  be required to  operate successfully i n  this environment. 

ATCO Midstream has developed strategies for each of i ts  facilities to  deal 

with these issues. 

ATCO Midstream's key t o  success is adding value t o  i ts  clients by 

providing cost-effective, integrated solutions t o  their gathering, 

processing, storage and gas management needs. This success is due i n  

no small par t  t o  the  combined efforts of the company's committed 

employees who work together i n  a small team-oriented environment. 

GATHERING & PROCESSING 

A highlight of the  past year was the purchase from Talisman Energy 

o f  the Cranberry Gas Plant and a 70km gas-gathering pipeline 

network located near the town of Manning i n  northwestern Alberta. 

The Cranberry plant increases ATCO Midstream's processing capacity by 

more than 35 million cubic feet a day, t o  670 million cubic feet a day. 

The addition of this asset to  the company's portfolio of processing 

plants is very significant, as it provides a strategic base for expanded 

activities i n  this active gas development region of Alberta. 

The NGL side o f  ATCO Midstream's business benefitted from strong NGL 

prices throughoutthe year and attractive shrinkage-gas prices for the 

f i rs t  half of the year. The company's NGL extraction plants operated 

reliably and a t  high utilization rates throughoutthe year. 

Rising gas prices, along with strong marketing efforts, kept ATCO 

Midstream's gathering and processing facilities near capacity 

throughout the  year. To increase access for producers i n  the  Telfordville 

area west of the  City of Edmonton, the 26km "Golden Spike West" 

pipeline was constructed and additionalsour processing capacity was 

added a t  the Golden Spike Plant. 

I n  2000, average plant throughput wasin excess of 90% of 

available capacity. This continues to  be a very high rate of utilization 

i n  an industry where traditional utilization rates average 

approximately 60%. 

ATCO 
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STORAGE AND HUB SERVICES 

Natural gas markets were again quite volatile during the  year. 

ATCO Midstream's Marketing group worked closely wi th  producers. 

energy marketers, aggregators and gas distr ibutors to  actively manage 

their storage positions. 

I n  addit ion t o  marketing storage capacity held a t  several storage 

facilities, ATCO Midstream continued a successful partnership to  br ing t o  

market t he  capacity of another excellent ALberta storage reservoir. 

This added value t o  ATCO Midstream through the  growth o f  i ts  storage 

business and also t o  ATCO Pipelines by allowing it t o  offer addit ional 

transportat ion capacity, 

ATCO Midstream i s  looking t o  strengthen i ts  Long-term position i n  the  

storage a n d  hub services business through developing addit ional 

storage capacityin Alberta. 

ATCO F R O N T E C  
ATCO Fmntec sales revenuein 2000 increased by 25% and employees o f  

ATCO Frontec projects, business units and j o i n t  ventures grew t o  

exceed 600 people. 

LOGISTICS 

I n  t he  f i rs t  major outsourcing o f  support t o  international ly deployed 

Canadian Forces, ATCO Frontec won the  contract t o  provide support 

services i n  Bosnia-Herzegovina. Services provided t o  f ive camps include 

satellite and ground communication, billeting, catering, supply and 

transportat ion, util it ies, facilit ies and grounds maintenance. vehicle 

maintenance, fue l  handiing, and f i r e  and environment protection. 

This two-year contract, w i th  a one-year opt ion. i s  a unique project t ha t  

includes management o f  Canadian civilians, Local residents and 

embedded mi l i tary  personnel. 

In  the Northwest Territories, ATCO Frontec, working w i th  the  Dogrib Rae 

Band through a jo in t ly  owned company, Tli Cho Logistics Inc., renewed a 

contract wi th  BHP Diamond Mines t o  provide on-site fuel re-supply 

management. I n  2000, fue l  handl ing grew from 3 1  t o  43 mil l ion Litres 

delivered by 1016 trucks over 58 delivery days on a 46Okm winter ice 

road.Tli Cho wi l l  handle 70 mil l ion litres o f  f ue l  for  BHPin 2001. 

Also working through TLi Cho Logistics Inc., ATCO Frontec extended a 

contract t o  provide site support services including far i l i t ics operation 

and maintenance t o  Diavik Diamond Mines during the  construction 

phase o f  th is  mine, Located 300 km northeast of Yellowknife on Lac de 

Gras During t h e  2000 winter road season, ATCO Frontec supported 

upgrading camp facilit ies t o  accommodate 500 onsite personnel. 

RADAR AND COMMUNICATION SYSTEMS 

The Government o f  Canada issued an Advance Contract Award Notice 

indicat ing i t s  in tent  t o  negotiate a new North Warning System contract 

wi th  t h e j o i n t  venture between ATCO Frontec and Pan Arct ic Inu i t  

Logistics Corporation to  commence October 1, 2001. ATCO Frontec and 

i t s  partner have now managed this NORAD program since 1988. 

AIRPORTS MANAGEMENT 

In June, ATCO Frontec began providi \ lg a i r i ide and groundside support 

services t o  the  NATO Flying Training i n  Canada program as a follow-up t o  

services provided t o  former 15 Wing Moose Jaw. Efforts are underway t o  

negotiate long-term provision o f  these services t o  Bombardier Inc. 

LOOKING AHEAD 

ATCO Frontec continues t o  look for growth through strong alliances and 

providing excellent services i n  our core businesses, Logistics, facilit ies 

and systems management and technical services. As a world-scale 

player, ATCO Frontec continues t o  be f lexible t o  meet changing economic 

conditions while competing wi th  Large international companies. 

Major addit ional thrusts this year include providing support services t o  

the  o i l and  gas sector and the  supply chain industry. Working with our 

a f f i l ia te  companies i n  Logistics and Energy Services, we are pursuing 

northern pipeline development opportunities. 

ENVIRONMENT AND COMMUNITY 

The Logistics and Energy Services Group demonstrates i ts  strong 

commitment t o  the  environment by making the  environment a number 

one pr ior i ty  in a l l  operat ional plans and decisions, including continually 

monitor ing for potential  risk t o  the  environment and complying wi th  

regulatory and community agencies. 

Our use o f  an environmental management system framework ensures 

tha t  employees are aware of sound environmental work practices. 

The Group continues t o  support and be involved i n  environmental 

committees and ini t iat ives through industry associations. 

Each company within the  Logistics and Energy Services Group continues 

t o  recognize the  importance o f  maintaining and developing 

relationships wi th in  the  communities they serve. 

Early this year, ATCO Midstream was nominated for a "Quantum Leap- 

award by the  United Way for increased employee contr ibut ions t o  the  

Edmonton and area and the  Calgary and area campaigns by 

more than 25%. 

Through a n  Employee Community Service Fund, ATCO Pipelines matches 

employee donations t o  charitable and cu l tura lorgani ia t ion i .  

A t  a l l i t s  operations across Canada, ATCO Frontec supports, sponsors and 

participates i n  community initiatives and events. 

ATCO 



Focusing on the synergies of ATCO I-Tek and ATCO 

Singlepoint led to  the formation of our new Technologies 

Group. With significantly increased demand for their 

services, both companies were successful i n  2000 and were 

able to enhance their reputations as organizations that  

can, and do, deliver on their commitments. 

Market demand for  services t h a t  effectively integrate people, process 

and technology continues t o  grow. Our people are the  basis o f  our 

success and we remain committed t o  the i r  growth and development t o  

ensure we continue delivering excellent service t o  our clients. 

Priority projects i n  2000 were driven by market factors such as Alberta's 

deregulating electricindustry: t he  emergence of customer choice i n  the  

energy sector, and information sharing needs i n  the new energy market. 

ATCO-CIS, our new converged customer information system, has been 

inst rumenta l in  providing the  capability t o  meet these 

+amic requirements. 

Arc0 Singlepoint's roll centre nirtomer ogenn were roted bervtop perJormerr woth 

regoids to knowledge. raurtery ond obiliw to resolve ;suer. 

Our Group has been able t o  respond and adapt t o  numerous changes 

impacting the  design and reliability of our bi l l ing system. As a result, we 

were one of t he  f i rs t  t o  meet the  Alberta government's deadline t o  

create and implement a web-based customer choice interface for 

energy retailers. 

heTechnologies Group i s  wel l  positioned t o  provide expertise and 

service capability t o  the Customer Care and Technology services market 

and, as such, we anticipate continued strong performanceand excelleot 

growth opportunities. 

Siegfried W. Kiefer 

Managing Director 

Technologies 



ATCO S I N G L E P O I N T  
ATCO Singlepaint provides t h e  people, t he  processes and the  systems t o  

deliver customer care, cal l  centre and bi l l ing services t o  their clients. 

I n  the  year 2000, ATCO Singlepaint prepared and delivered moie than 1 2  

mil l ion ut i l i ty bills. collected revenues of more than $1.8 bill ion. and 

responded t o  more than two mil l ion customer calls on behalf o f  

their clients. 

As a consequence o f  high energy costs, ATCO Singlepoint experienced ;. 

more than doubling of t he  daily callvolumes t o  our cal l  centre. 

This dramaticincrease i n  cal lvolume resulted i n  access delays and a t  

times loilger than normaltelephone wait  times for our customers. 

Responding quickly t o  the  higher demand, ATCO Singlepoint combined 

an accelerated recruitment and training approach wi th  new telephone 

technology t o  meettheincreased demand for  services. Within weeks, 

customer wait  times were reduced significantly. 

Through rigorous employee training, and the  continuous monitor ing o f  

performance and quality measures, ATCO Singlepoint was able t o  

accommodate th is  rapld expansion without compromising the quality o t  

service t o  the  cuitomers. I n  fact, an independent benchmark comparing 

ATCO Singlepoint's cal l  centre wi th  other energy related cal l  centres i n  

Canada rated our customer agents as t he  best/top performers with 

regards to  knowledge, courtesy, and abi l i ty t o  iesalveissues. 

ATCO Singlepoint implemented many new service capabilities and 

enhancements i n  2000, providing Alberta's f i rs t  web-based Customer 

Choice interface for  energy retailers, implementing Wire Service 

Provider (WSP) bi l l ing services t o  ATCO Electric, providing default 

supplier bi l l ing services, providing natural gas broker bi l l ing 

information, and converting ovei400.000 gas customers t o  ATCO-CIS. 

ATCO I - T E K  
ATCO I-Tek provides the  technicaland application services t h a t  support 

over 200 software applications, more than 3500 desktop and laptop 

computers. and a network t h a t  connecti  more than 126 locations where 

the ATCO Group operates. 

In t he  year 2000, ATCO I-Tek experienced a more than 25% increase i n  

the  demand for  i t s  services. I n  addit ion t o  handl ing more than 50,000 

requests for service from our clients, and completing signif icant 

upgrades t o  our technology infrastructure, AlCU 1-lek operated a l l  

systems, at, or above the  contracted service level measures for  

rel iabi l i ty and availability. 

5. W. (Siegfried) Kiefer, Monoging Director. Technoiogiez 

ATCO ITek's team of more than 350 IT Professionals were engaged in 

many cr i t ical application and technical infrastructure projects. Same o f  

our signif icant accomplishments i n  2000 include: 

A web-based Custonier Choice interfnce for energy retaiiers. 

Development and irnplementotion ofATCO Pipelines' web-based 

Transportation Information Syitem. ATCO Pipelines customers are 

now oble to ~ m n i r i o t e  and t iackaccounti  fornatuioigospipel ine 

transportation services online, saving significant time and  expense 

for both ATCO Pipelines and their customers. 

Development and  implementation of a new Hill ing System to hondle 

bi l l ing for power generation legacy plants according to the Power 

Purchase Arrangements. 

Implemented odvonced voice technology solutions to improve coll 

handi ing capacity and col l  routpng copobility foi the coll centre. 

Identified and  impiemented h igh speed converged doto ond 

telephony capability for our networks, including voice over the 

In ternet  protocol, and  virtual private networkiervices. both of which 

will provide iervice improvement5 and  cost benefits to ATCO Ltd. 

In addit ion to  meeting tremendous growth and schedule challenges, 

ATCO I-Tek was successfulin meeting the  un i t  cost reductions committed 

t o  as par t  o f  their Master Service Agreement wi th  a l l  the i r  c l ient i .  

For the  second straight year, i n  an independent benchmark comparison. 

ATCO I Tek's service levels and un i t  prices for  al lareas o f  service 

compared favorably t o  those i n  the  industry. 

ATCO 



COMMUNITY AND ENVIRONMENT 

The Technologies Group supports t h e  corporate environmental, health 

and safety guidelines, emplo)n'ng sound business practices throughout 

i t s  organization. The use of  recycling b insfor  paper products, as wellas 

t h e  use of recycled paper whenever possible provides a significant 

positive impact on t h e  environment. 

ATCO I-Tekis a sponsor of  Alberta's "Computers for  Schools'' program. 

This program has enabled ATCO I-Tek t o  donate retired computer 

equipmentin support o f  schoolsand public i ibrar ies in communities 

throughout Alberta. ATCO I-Tek matches employee donations t o  

charitable organizations, partners wi th  other ATCO companies i n  

support o f  community causes, and sponsors IT industry  conferences 

relevant t o  t h e  professional development o f  i t s  employees. ATCO I-Tek 

also participates i n  t h e  In tern and Co-op programs of  post secondary 

inst i tu t ions in Alberta. 

LA- 

ATCO I-Tek's team of over 350 information terhnologyprofe~sionok handledover 

50,000 regoerafor servicefrom their clients in 2000. 

ATCO Singlepoint's community participation strategy is  t o  invest i n  

those places where t h e  company has a face t o  t h e  customer and i n  

communities where s taf f  live and work. 

I n  2000, ATCO Singlepoint provided sponsorship for t h e  Red Deer 

Westerner Days, and made donations t o  a City o f  Red Deer sponsored 

shelter, the Collicutt Centre recreation complex, and matched employee 

donations t o  various charitable causes. 



The Industrials Group includes ATCO Structures, ATCO Noise 

Management, Genics and ASHCORTechnologies. As noted i n  

the Co-Chairmen's remarks this "collection" of businesses 

has each developed an expertise within their respective 

industries. Our mandate as a Group is to achieve profitable 

growth by building on our strength as a world leader i n  

modular buildings and further become recognized as a 

global enterprise excelling i n  modular buildings, noise 

abatement, environmentally friendly wood preservation 

products and marketing coal combustion products. 

Our responsibilityto our employeesis t o  providea safe and healthy 
working environment and develop personal skills to allow for growth and 

opportunity within each of  our companies and throughout the 
Industrials Group. 

I am pleased to provide the following synopsis for each ofthese 

companies i n  the year 2000. 

Walter A. Kmet 

Managing Director 

Industrials 

ATCO STRUCTURES 
ATCO Structures operates worldwide from manufacturing facilities on 

five continents. The activities and performance of  the company overall 

varied from location t o  location during the year. 

AUSTRALIA 

Without question ATCO Structures' operations i n  Australia continued t o  

excel with the opening of two new branches i n  Mackay, Queensland and 

Melbourne, Victoria. ATCO Structures Pty Ltd. expanded i ts  national fleet 
to over 3,000 units and achieved utilization rates of  over 75%during the 

year. ATCO proudly participated i n  the Sydney Olympic Games, providing 

over 300 units for media accommodation and various support 

requirements a t  many venues. 

Other notable projects included: supply of military and diplomatic 

accommodation for Australia's East Timor relief effort, a series of 

contracts t o  supply telecommunication equipment shelters for 

Australia's expanding mobile phone and fibre optic network, and 

expanding the construction camp for the Bechtel Millmerran Po,--- 

Projectin Queensland from 700 t o  1,200 persons. 

W. A. (Woiter) Kmet, Managing Director, Indurtriolr 

CANADA 

I n  Canada, ATCO Structures returned to the Space Rentals market i n  Apri l  

2000. The product line includes relocatable site offices, lavatories, mine 

drys, communication buildings, f irst aids, locker rooms and storage 

units. Space Rentals sales offices have been established i n  Alberta and 

British Columbia and further expansion is  expected i n  2001. 

The workforce housing business began the year with the manufacture 

and installation of a 1,761 person construction camp for the Albian Oil 
Sands development 75 km north of  Fort McMurray. The camp was 

completed i n  October with possible expansion t o  2,200 people by July 

2001. This camp features ATC0's "new generation" dormitories, 

kitchen/diner and recreation complexes. Another key projectin Canada 

was the contract t o  build a 60 person dr i l l  camp destined for the 

MacKenzie Delta. NWT. ATCO manufactured the 21-unit camp i n  Calgary 

and significant features included complete electrical services and a 

water treatment/storage system. 

High energy prices are providing for a high levelof expendituresin 

Canada and the United States, ensuring a good backlog of  activity for 

the company's factories i n  Calgary and Spruce Grove, combined with 

steady fleet utiiization as well. Sales of  the patented Fold-A-Way storage 
buildings were consistent throughout the year. 

UNITED STATES 

ATCO Structures manufacturing faci l i tyin Diboli, Texas, north of  

Houstun received slale certification i n  February 2000 and production 

commenced i n  March. A variety of  products are being manufactured 

including offices, classrooms, storage units and storage facilities. These 

products are being sold t o  key US. Space Rental dealers based i n  the 

south-central region of the United States. The company has gained 

excellent client acceptance for i ts  products and it is  expected t o  

maintain a strong level of activityin the coming year. 

EUROPE 

ATCO Europe's operations based i n  Budapest, Hungary successfully 

completed a number of  significant projects destined for Kazakhstan 

including a 100 person camp for the Sazankurak Oil Field Project, a 200 

person camp fo r the  Karachaganakoiland gas f ield project, and a 13 



person d r i l l  camp for Parker Drilling. Other notable projectsincluded a 

17-module office and pre-engineered operations building for a missile 
dismantlement program i n  Russia and staff housing for  a highway 

construction project i n  Croatia. Marketsin Europe remain very 
competitive and the  outlook for 2001 is  very encouraging. Significant 

capital spending i n  the  o i land  gasindustr iesis expected, particularly i n  

Kazakhstan and Algeria. 

SOUTH AMERICA 

In South America, ATCO's jo in t  venture company Tecno Fast ATCO 

experienced a quiet year. However there are a number of significant 

projects proceeding i n  early 2001 tha t  should ensure a strong upcoming 

year f o r t h e  company. 

ATCO N O I S E  M A N A G E M E N T  
Established i n  1991, and headquarteredin Calgary, ATCO Noise 

Management is  a full-service engineering, procurement and 

construction company specializing i n  noise abatement for 

industr ial facilities. 

Arc0 stmaures monujartured ond imlulied workforce hawing including darmitariei, 

kitrhen/dining ond recreation facilities for 1,761 workers o t  the Albion Oil Sondr 

Project neoi Fort McMurray. Alberta in 2000. 

A significant achievement for ATCO Noise Management i n  2000 was the 

completion of 53 acoustic generator enclosures for Siemens 

Weqtinghouse Power Corporation (SWPC) a t  sites throughout North 

America. In 2001, the company wil ldei iver an additional 70 enclosure< 

using the new panelized design developed for SWPC. 

I n  the  area of acoustic retrofit, ATCO Noise Management commenced 

retrof i ts for 10 power plants a t  four sites i n  Puerto Rico. Further 
acoustic treatment o f  faciiities was completed i n  Alberta. Ontario, the 

northeastern United States and the United Kingdom. 

During the year, a new growth opportunityfor ATCO Noise Management 

resulted from customer requests for assistance early i n  the project stage 

for acousticalsurveying and preliminary analysis. As a result, major 

environmental noise assessments were conducted i n  Alabama, Texas, 

Pennsyivania and Virginia. 

Opportunities for acoustic applications continue t o  grow. I n  late 2000, 

ATCO Noise Management was awarded the acoustic retrof i t  of a power 

plant i n  Panama, acoustic treatment for new compressor installations in  

the United Kingdom and the  design and supply of six acoustical 

enciosuresfor Hitachi America i n  Saskatchewan. 



For 2001, ATCO Noise Management willcontinue to  meet the strong 

demand for noise abatement for customers i n  the United Kingdom, 

Canada and the United States - particularly from the energyindustry 

where electrical power shortfallis creating a need for new generation. 
The company plans to  open an off icein Orlando, Florida i n  the spring of 

2001 to  maximize this opportunity. Further objectives include 
deveioping new products t o  sell t o  the original equipment manufacturer 

markct. 

A S H C O R  T E C H N O L O G I E S  
ASHCOR is in  the business of marketing fly ash to  consuming industries 

in  Alberta, eastern British Columbia and western Saskatchewan. From a 

"greenfield start-upin 1998, ASHCORis now recognized as a reliable 

and competitive supplier of qualityfly ash, which is used as a partial 

replacement for Portland Cement i n  the produm'on of ready-mixed 

concrete, o i l  well cements and i n  a varietyof construction applications. 

For 2001 and beyond. the Company wil l  continue to  buiid its customer 
basein these traditional fly ash markets and seek new applications. 

ATCO Noise Management designed, supplied and instolled the ocousti< treatment of 

the compressor building o t  the Contorell Nitrogen Project in Compeche, Men'm. 

G E N I C S  
Genics, headquartered near Edmonton. Alberta develops, manufactures 

and markets innovative environmentally friendly wood preservatives for 

the utility, commercialand residential markets throughout North 

America. 

I n  2000, Genics successfully provided a full range of remedial treatment 

products to major utility companies across Canada through a sales and 
distribution network. As the utility industry undergoes restructuring, 

there wilt continue to  be an increased focus on the reliabilityand 

maintenance of transmission/distribution assets. 

I n  the United States, Genics products are being selected by a growing 

number of US. power companies. The outlook for Genicsis toincrease 

market share as US. utility companies becomeincreasingly conscious of 
the adverse environmental impacts associated with traditional 

retreatment products and practices. 

ENVIRONMENT AND COMMUNITY 

ATCO Industrials Group is committed to  excellence in  the conduct or our 
operations and in  the provision of our products and services in an 

environmentally responsible manner. Our commitmentis driven not only 

by legislated requirements but also by the expectations of our customers 

and the communitiesin which we conduct our business. 



ATCO L t d .  

F i n a n c i a l  
O v e r v i e w  
New performance records were set by the ATCO Group i n  2000. 

Eainingspershore increasedfor the 13th consecutive y e a r  earnings 

pershore i n  2000 were $3.79 compared to $3.36 in 1999. 

Earnings increosed by 11.9% to $112.7 million in 2OOOffom $100.7 

million i n  1999. 

Primariiyas a result of the hiqhereornings, cash flowfrom 

operotions increosed by 825.6 million to $519.4 million in 2000. 

Common shore dividends inoeosed by 15% to $0.92 per shore in 

2000 from 80.80pershore in 1999. 

Proper@, plant ondequipment of 84.2 billion i n  2000 wos up from 

$4.0 billion i n  1999. Capitol expenditures (net) increased by 894.9 

million to $493.5 million i n  2000, primarily the result of increased 

investment in  non-requlatedpowerplan~ by the Power Generation 

Group and i n  additional pipelines by the Logistics and Energy 

Services Group. 

tranchise fees paid by the  reguldlrd companies to  communities for the  

r igh t to  distribute naturalgas and electricityincreased by 28%in 2000 

up to  $100.1 million, primarily due t o  higher naturalgas costs. 

ATCO's share owners achieved a to ta l  return, including capitalgain and 

dividends, of 20% i n  2000. Over the Last five years. as shown on the  

graph on the following page, share owners would have received an 

average annual growth rate o f  23% on their investmentin ATCO shares. 

The reorganization of Canadian Utilities implemented on July 1,1999 

provides greater flexibility for the regulated operations to  deveiop, 

manage and finance their respective operations independently. It a k o  

allows the nowregulated operations to  continue their growth without 

affecting the  financial strength and credit ratings o f  the  regulated 

uti l i ty operations. 

Since the reorganiration, CU Inc., the parent company of the regulated 

uti l i ty operations, has issued $500 million o f  deberkures - $300 million 

i n  1999 and $200 million i n  2000 to  finance the operations of ATCO 

Electric, ATCO Gas and ATCO Pipelines. I n  2000. CU Inc. issued $100 

million o f  6.97% debentures dueJune 2, 2008 and $100 million of 

7.05% debentures dueJune 1, 2011. CU Inc. redeemed $50.2 million of 

long term debt with interest rates ranging up t o  8.81%and $34.1 

million of preferred shares having a dividend rate of 6.6%. 

J. A. (Jim) Campbell, Senior Vice President, Finonre and Chief Finanrid Officer 

As referenced i n  the Co-Chairmen's Letter t o  theshare Owners, our 

Power Generation Group isincreasingly replacing earnings from the 

regulated companies. The corollary o f  increased earnings growth is 

increased capital requirements. Therefore, ATCO Power has arranged 

financing o f  approximately $450 million, on a non-recourse basis with 

anticipated completion i n  the f i rs t  half of 2001, fo r the  150MW 

cogeneration plant a t  the  Athabaska Oil Sands Project Upgrader a t  

Scotford, Alberta; the  170MW cogeneration plant a t  the  Athabaska Oil 

Sands Project a t t h e  Muskeg River Mine near Fort McMurray; 

and the 260MW cogeneration plant a t t h e  Cory Mine near 

Saskatoon, Saskatchewan. 

Share owners'equityincreased by $78.1 million to  $822.3 million i n  

2000. The ATCO Group has the financialstrength and financial flexibility 

required to  meet i ts  growth objectives i n  the shortterm and i n  the 

longerterm. 

J.A. (Jim) Campbell 

Senior Vice President, Finance 

and Chief Financialofficer 
ATCO Ltd. 
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ATCO L t d .  

M a n a g e m e n t ' s  D iscussion And Ana lys is  
o f  F i n a n c i a l  C o n d i t i o n  a n d  Resu l ts  o f  O p e r a t i o n s  

I N T R O D U C T I O N  
The following discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of 

operations of ATCO Ltd. for the two years ended December 31,2000 should 

be read i n  conjunction with the audited consolidated financiaiitatements 

which include theaccounts of ATCO Ltd. and a l l o f i t s  subsidiaries ("ATCO). 

The principalsubsidiaries are Canadian Utilities Limited ("Canadian 

Utilities"), ofwhich ATCO Ltd. awns 41.7% of the ClassA non-voting shares 

and 69.0% o f the  Class B common shares, for an aggregate ownership of 

51.9%. ATCO Structures Inc. ("ASI") ofwhich ATCO Ltd. owns 100% of the 

Class A non-voting and Class B common shares, and ATCO Noise Management 

Ltd. ("ANM) of which ATCO Ltd. owns 100% of the Class A non-voting and 

Class B common shares. Canadian Utilities has published an Annual Report 

containing i ts  Management's Discussion and Analysis o f  Financial Condition 

and Results a f  Operations. Please refer to  Shareholders' Information on the 

inside back cover of this annual repar t to  obtain copies. 

ATCO's annual audited finann'alstatements are consolidated from four 

principal Business Groups: Utilities, Power Generation, Logistics and Energy 

Services and Industrials. For the purposes o f  financial disclosure, the 

Technologies Business Group i s  accounted for as Other Businesses and 

corporate transactions are accounted for as Corporate. (Refer t o  Note 16 to  

the consolidated financialstatements). Transamons between Business 

Groups are eliminated in a l l  reporting o f  ATCO's consolidated 

financialinformation. 

R E O R G A N I Z A T I O N S  
During July 2000, ATCO's principal operating subsidiaries were 

reorganized in to  five focused Business Groups. I n  addition, on 

January 1, 2001, ATCO completed an internal reorganization consisting a f  

the following transamans: 

The operations and ossetr of Northwestern U t i l i t i a  Limited ("NUL"j were 

transferred to ATCO Gos and Pipelines Ltd. ("AGP") and NUL became on 

inactive wholly ownedsubsidiory of AGE 

Substantially a l l  of the generoting assets of ATCO Electric Ltd. ("ATCO 

Electric") were tronsfened to Alberta Power (2000) Ltd. 

('Nberta Power"). 

Ashcor Technoiogies Ltd., formerly o subsidiary ofATCO Electric, and 

Genics Inc ,  formerly o subsidioiy of ATCO Frantec Corp., become direct 

subsidioiies of Conodion Utilities. 

The reo,paniredstructure, with revised roles and responsibilities. will 

enoble ATCO to sustain its correntochievements and to set newgoalr for 

future growth. 

Except where otherwise indicated, t he  disclosure i n  th i s  Management's 

Discussion and Analysis i s  presented as a t  December 31,2000, after 

giving effect t o  the  July 2000 and January 1,2001, reorganizations. 

RESULTS O F  O P E R A T I O N S  

CONSOLIDATED OPERATIONS 

Segmented revenues and earningsfortheyears 2000 and 1999 were 

as follows: 

Business Groups Revenues Earnings 

(Millions of Canadian Dollori) 2000 1999 2000 1999 

Utilities 2,060.9 1,570.8 40.1 47.9 

Power Generation 727.2 567.6 58.3 35.3 

Logistics and Energy Senices 921.3 555.5 24.3 21.1 

Industrials 132.0 164.2 5.2 13.0 

Other Businesses 91.1 77.7 3.0 (1.2) 

Corporate 16.0 14.1 (15.7) (11.9) 

Intersegment (872.5) (575.1) (2.5) (3.5) 

Total 3,076.0 2,374.8 112.7 100.7 

Note: 
Certain 1999 comporotivefigigures hove been reclassified to conform with the 

currentyear's presentation. 

Earnings per Class I Non-Voting Share (''Class I Share") and Class I 1  Voting 

Share (''Class I1 Share") increased to  $3.79 i n  2000 from $3.36 i n  1999. 

QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

(Millions ofCanadian Dollors except pershore data) 

(unaudited) 

1s t  2nd 3rd 4th 

Revenues 773.8 588.1 616.9 1,097.2 

Earnings Attributable t o  

Classland ClassIIShares ('I(') 39.1 20.0 22.1 31.5 

Earnings Per Class I and 

Class I 1  Share ('1 1.31 0.68 0.74 1.06 

Fully Diluted Earnings 

Per Class I and Class I1 Share ('1 (2) 1.30 0.67 0.73 1.05 

1999 

Revenues 668.7 524.8 482.7 698.6 

Earnings Attributable to  

Class I and Class I 1  Shares 0) (2) 35.3 21.8 18.7 24.9 

Earnings Per Class I a n d  

Class I IShare ( I ) ( 2 )  1.18 0.72 0.63 0.83 

Fully Diluted Earnings 

Per Class I and Class I 1  Share 1%) 12) 1.17 0.71 0.62 0.82 

Notes: 

0) There were no discontinued operotions or extraordinary Items during 

these periods. 

12) Due to the seasonal noture ofATCO's operotions and the timing of rote 

decisions, earnings for any quorter are not  necessarily iodicotive of 
operations on on onnual basis. 



UTILITIES 

Earnings from util it ies operations for 2000, which amounted t o  35.6%of 

consalidated earnings, decreased by $7.8 million to  $40.1 million, primarily 

resulting from the impact of rate decisions for AGP, partially offset by 

improved performancein ATCO Electricand theimpactof colder 

temperatures. Temperatures i n  2000 were 4.5% colder than normal, whereas 

temperatures i n  1999 were 8.3% warmer than normal. 

Revenues i n  2000 increased by $490.1 mill ion to  $2,060.9 million. 

The primary reason for the increase was higher naturalgas supply casts 

recavered i n  customer rates, partially offset by the impact of rate decisions 

received i n  2000. 

Operating expenses for 2000 increased by $518.5 million t o  $1,702.9 million. 

Thisincrease was primarily due to  higher naturalgas supply costs. 

The amount of naturalgas supply costs recorded as an expenseis based on 

the forecast cost o f  naturalgas included i n  customer rates. Any variances 

from forecast are deferred unt i l  the Alberta Energy and Utiiities Board 

('AEUB") approves revised rates to  either refund or collect the variance. As a 

consequence, changes i n  naturalgas supply costs have no effect on 

ATCO's earnings. 

During 2000, the natural gas distribution division o f  AGP ("ATCO Gas") 

determined that  it would concentrate fully on the distribution of natural gas 

to  i ts  customers and announced that  it would sell a l l  o f  i ts  o i l  and gas 

producing properties. On December 22,2000, ATCO Gas conditionally agreed 

to  sellitsvih'ng-Kinsella producing property effective December 31, 2000 for 

$490.0 million, before closing adjustments. On January 10,2001, ATCO Gas 

reached a conditional agreement to  sel l i ts interest i n  several non-operated 

producing properties for $15.4 million, subject t o  closing adjustments. 

On February 1,2001, ATCO Gas reached a conditional agreement t o  re l l i ts  

interest i n  the Beaverhill Lake and Fort Saskatchewan area produdng 

properties for $37.0 million, subject t o  closing adjustments. On February 27, 

2001, ATCO Gas reached a conditional agreement to  sellits interest i n  the 

Lloydminster producing property for $3.8 million, subject t o  closing 

adjustments. These sales are expected to  close i n  the second quarter of 

2001. Both the sales and the sharing o f  proceeds between customers and 

ATCO Gas are subject t o  regulatory approval. 

POWER GENERATION 

Earnings from power generation aperations (which includes ATCO Power Ltd. 

("ATCO Power"), ATCO Resources Ltd. ('ATCO Resources") and the Alberta 

interconnected generating assets acquired by Alberta Power) for 2000, which 

amounted to  51.7% of consolidated earnings, increased by $23.0 million t o  

$58.3 million. 

Revenues i n  2000increased by $159.6 mill ion to  $727.2 million. 

This increase was primarily the result of higher power pool prices 

(ATCO Power and ATCO Resources) and the recovery o f  higher Alberta 

transmission access charges and higher fuel costs (Alberta Power). 

Operating expenses for 2000 increased by $87.4 million to  $400.8 million. 

Theincrease was primarily the result o f  higher fuel prices and higher Alberta 

transmission access costs. 

ATCO Power is construding and wi l l  operate a $70 million, 92 megawatt 

naturalgas fired generating station near Valleyview, Alberta. Al l  o f  the 

electricity produced by the station wi l l  be sold t o  the Alberta power pool. 

The project i s  scheduled for commissioning i n  2002. ATCO Power wi l l  own an 

805interer t  i n  the project and ATCO Resources wi l l  own 20%. 

ATCO Power is construch'ng and wi l l  operate a $33 million, 32 megawatt 

hydroelectric generating station a t  the Oldman River dam near Pincher 

Creek, Alberta. Al l  of the electricity produced by the station wi l l  be sold to  

the Alberta Power Pool. The project i s  scheduled for commissioning i n  2002. 

ATCO Power wi l lown an 80%interest i n  the project and ATCO Resources will 
own 20%. ATCO Power and the Peigan Nation o f  Brocket. Alberta are 

discussing a partnering arrangement i n  the project. 

Alberta Power and the Alberta Balancing Pool entered in to  an agreement 

which gives the Alberta Balancing Pool control o f  the H.R. Milner generating 

station effective January 1, 2001 and the r ight t o  se l l i t  i n  the future. In 

return, Alberta Powerwas paid $63.5 million, the net bookvalue of the 

station and the coalinventory. Alberta Power wi l l  operate the station an a 

cost o f  service basis on behalf o f the  Alberta Balancing Pool. Luscar Ltd. has 

contracted to  supply coal t o  the generating station. 

LOGISTICS AND ENERGY SERVICES 

Earnings from lagistics and energy services operations for 2000, which 

amounted to  21.6% o f  consolidated earnings, increased by $3.2 million t o  

$24.3 million. 

Revenues i n  2000 increased by $365.8 mill ion to  $921.3 million. The primary 

reason far theincrease was higher volumes of natural gas processed and 

stored i n  non-regulated natural gas processing, gathering and storage 

operations and higher prices for naturalgas and ethane. 

Operating expenses for 2000, net  ofintersegment expenses, increased 

by $156.2 million. This increase war primarily due to  the increase i n  natural 

gas prices. 

INDUSTRIALS 

Earnings from industrials operations decreased by $7.8 mill ion t o  $5.2 

million i n  2000. 

Revenuesin 2000decreased by $32.2 million t o  $132.0 million, primarily 

due t o  decreased manufacturing sales i n  Europe. Canada and South America, 

partially offset by sales i n  the new United States operations. 

Western Canadian capital resource projects provide the primary domestic 

market for the North American workforce housing division. During 2000, the 

fleet utilization rate of 61% was down from 64% i n  1999. Programs t o  

rationalize and modernize the size o f  the workforce housing Lease fleet 

are continuing. 

Operating expenses for 2000 decreased by $24.4 mill ion t o  $111.7 million, 

primarily as a result of reduced business activity, partially offset by the 

increased costs o f  ASl's new manufacturing plant i n  the US. 

AS1 willcantinue t o  focus on i ts  core businesses of workforce housing i n  

North America, Australia, South America and Europe and selective 

international markets and on the space rental business i n  Australja and 

Canada. ANM wil lcontinueto focus on the growing demand forturnkey 

guaranteed noise abatement opportunities i n  the energy industry worldwide. 

A number o f  major projects, which provide opportunities for ASI, are planned 

for development i n  2001 and beyond. I n  Australia, the majority o f  there 

projects are st i l l  on hold and may proceed starting Late i n  2001. AS1 expects 

a number of projects i n  South America, North America, Europe and Africa to  

proceed i n  2001. 



International sales may expose AS1 and ANM t o  greater risk than normally 

associated with domestic transactioni due to  the political and financial 

aspects of international business. However, AS1 and ANM wil l  continue to  

foliow strict credit policies on international sales to  minimize financial 

exposure and willcontinue t o  ut i l izeits internationalexperience t o  manage 

the politicaland other risks associated with international business. AS1 has 

marketed and installed i ts  manufactured products i n  over 105 countries 

around the world since 1947. 

OTHER BUSINESSES 

Earnings from other businesses for 2000 increased by $4.2 million t o  

$3.0 million. 

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 

Theinterests of non-controlling sharehaldersincreasedfrom $111.2 million 

i n  1999 to  $126.1 mill ion i n  2000. This increase was primarily due t o  

increased earnings by Canadian Utilities and higher dividends on Canadian 

Utilities' non-retractable preferred shares. 

REGULATORY MATTERS 

NATURAL GAS UTILITIES 

Merger of NUL and AGP 

On June 16,1998, NULand AGP (formerly Canadian Western NaturalGas 

Company Limited) announced that  the operations o f  the two companies 

would be merged and then restructured in to  two new businesses, one of 

which, the natural gas transmission divlsion o f  AGP ("ATCO Pipelines"), would 

focus an transmitting naturai gas throughout Alberta t o  industrial 

customers, distribution companies and export pipelines through high 

pressure pipelines. The other, ATCO Gas, would distribute natural gas, 

primarily t o  residential and commercial customers. The AEUB decision 

approving the restructuring directed NULand AGP t o  maintain separate 

accounts for regulatory purposes for four new divisions (ATCO Gas North. 

ATCO Pipelines North, ATCO Gas South and ATCO Pipelines South) unt i l  

December 31, 2004. The restructuring was completed January 1,2001 with 

the transfer o f  NUfs operations and assets t o  AGP. 

Gas Utilities Act 

Under the Gas Utilities Act, customers i n  Alberta have the choice of 

purchasing their natural gas supplies from their iocal natural gas util ity or 

directly from retailers, subject t o  certain conditions. In  any case, the  local 

natural gas util ity provides the distribution services for a l l  customers under 

AEUB approved tar i f fs which provide for the recovery of the cost of service, 

including a fair return on rate base. 

Customers purchasing natural gas from ATCO Gas do so at  rates that  are 

approved by the AEUB. ATCO Gas receives no prof i t  or benefit from increases 

i n  naturalgas prices. The cost o f the  natural gas it purchases for sale t o  i ts  

custamersis passed on directly to  i ts  customers following scrutiny i n  a public 

process under the authority o f  the AEUB. The AEUB requires ATCO Gas t o  fi le 

an application with the AEUB t o  adjust customer rates whenever the 

difference behveen natural gas costs and cost recoveries from cuitomers 

exceeds levels set by the AEUB. Customer rates proposed by ATCO Gas are 

scrutinized i n  public hearings which allow intervenors and the AEUB t o  test 

the prudence of ATCO Gas' natural gas purchase prices and resulting costs. 

Recent Decisions - ATCO Gas and ATCO Pipelines 

In 1998, the AEUB approved a five year negotiated settlement for 

NUL (ATCO Gas North and ATCO Pipelines North) which established cost of 

service rates and terms and conditions of service for residential, commercial, 

institutional and smallindustrialcustomers for 1998 through 2002. 

Among other things, the negotiated settlement included an incentive 

methodology. The agreement would be re-opened i f  the normalized util ity 

return for that  year was greater than 400 basis points over the National 

Energy Board determined return for certain pipelines under i ts  jurisdiction 

for that year ("NEB Return") or 300 basis paints below the NEB Return. 

In March 2000, ATCO Gas North advised that  it had exceeded the 1999 NEB 

Return by more than 400 basis points, triggering a re-opening of the 

agreement. ATCO Gas North also advised that there would not  be a rate 

increase f o i  the year 2000. The re-opening was settled by negotiation 

between ATCO Gas North and i ts  customers. The revised negotiated 

settlement provided that  the current rates would be reduced by 14% 

effectiveJanuary 1. 2001 and would remain i n  effect for the balance of the 

agreement. I n  addition, the earnings test was amended and the earnings 

re-opener clause eliminated. The amended test provides for an equal sharing 

of the earnings i n  excess o f  300 basis points above the NEB Return. On 

December 22,2000, the revised negotiated settlement was approved by 

the AEUB. 

On March 2,2000, the AEUBissued a decision on thegeneral rateapplication 

of AGP (ATCO Gas South and ATCO Fipelines South) for the test year 1998 and 

the review o f  the 1997 capital structure and return on common equity. 

The decision, among other things, provided for an approved rate of return on 

common equity of 10.5% i n  1997 and 9.375% for 1998. The decision reduced 

earnings attributable t o  Class I and Class I1 Sharer by $6.8 million, of which 

$4.7 million was provided for i n  1999. Rates approved in the decision were 

implemented on September 1,2000. 

On May 3. 1999, AGP (ATCO Gas South and ATCO Pipelines South) filed a 

general rate application for 1999. The AEUB held the application i n  abeyance 

un t i l i t  issued a decision on AGP's 1998 general rate application. On May 4. 

2000, AGP requested that the general rateapplication be withdrawn, stating 

i ts  belief that  the 1998 rates approved by the AEUB were appropriate far 

1999 and 2000. On December 21,2000, the AEUB issued a decision 

permitting AGP t o  withdraw the 1999 general rate application and 

confirming that  there was no need t o  f i le  a general rate application for 

2000. The decision also directed AGP to  refund $23.7 mill ion to  i ts  

customers. The refund, comprised o f  $14.1 mill ion for 1999 and $9.6 million 

i n  2000, arose ham the application of 1998 rates for the period January 1, 

1999 to  August 31,2000. The refund reduced earnings attributable t o  Class1 

and Class II Shares by $7.0 million, of which $4.2 million relates t o  1999. 

I n  a decision dated February 4,2000, the AEUB approved new pipeline tolls 

and tariffs for Nova Gas Transmission Ltd. ("Nova"). This decision triggered a 

re-opening o f  NUfs and AGP's existing IndustriaVProducer settlement 

agreements and ATCO Pipelines commenced negotiations with i ts  customers 

on the changer t o  i ts  rates, tolls and charges required to  maintain 

competitiveness with Nova's tolls and tariffs. Negotiations were successfui 

and on November 29,2000, ATCO Pipelines North and ATCO Pipelines South 

filed applications with the  AEUB requesting approval of the rates and terms 

and conditions o f  service for 2001 and 2002. I n  late December 2000, the 

AEUB approved the negotiated settlements on an interim refundable basis. 

A hearing on these applications wi l l  follow ATCO Pipelines South general 

rate application. 



On December 6,2000, ATCO Gas South filed a general rate application for the 

test years 2001 and 2002. The application requests an increase in  revenue 

requirement of approximately $23.8 million i n  2001 and $24.0 million in  

2002. The application incorporates forecast corts which, among other 

things, are based on rates of return of 11.5% for each year on the portion of 

rate base considered t o  be financed by common equity. Hearings are 

scheduled to commence on June 5,2001. 

On December 14,2000, ATCO Pipelines South filed a general rate application 

for the test years 2001 and 2002. The application incorporates forecast costs 

which, among ather things, are based on rates of return of 12.00%for each 

year an the portion of rate base considered to be financed by common 

equity. Hearings are scheduled t o  commence on June 26,2001. 

Alberta regulations require ATCO Gas North and ATCO Gas South t o  seek a rate 

change from the AEUB when the actualcosts of naturalgas purchased for the 

five month winter period are likely t o  exceed forecast corts by more than $2 

million or 3%. Due t o  the unprecedented high market prices for naturalgas. 

ATCO Gas North and ATCO Gas South had underrecovered $135.1 million by 

December 31,2000. On January 19, 2001. ATCO Gas North and ATCO Gas 

South filed applications with the AEUB seeking recovery of the difference 

between actual corts incurred to date and the costs forecastto March 31, 

2001. The applications sought the approval of one of two options. Option A 

incorporated an annualized rate which would allow ATCO Gas North and ATCO 

Gas South to take a 12 month projection of natural gas costs and recover a l l  

natural gds supply and related costs, including financing costs, over the next 

12 months. Option B war the normalcourse rate adjustment application 

which sought t o  recover the winter gas costs by April 30.2001. On January 

24,2001, the AEUB appraved Option A on an interim basis. On February 28. 

2001, the AEUB approved the winter gas cost recovery rates for al l  

curtomers. Option A was approved for residential, commercialand industrial 

customers that use less than 8,000 gigajooles annually. For al l  other 

customers, the AEUB approved option 8. For option B customers, ATCO Gar 

murt apply for a summer gas cost recovery rate that wil l  be i n  effect from 

May 1,2001 through October 31.2001. 

ELECTRIC UTILITIES 

Electric Utilities Act 

The Electric Utilities Act ("EUA) provides the framework for a new structure 

in  Alberta's eiectric utilityindustry and introduces competition into the 

electric utility business. As of January 1,2001, generation has been 

completely deregulated, retail competition has been introduced and retail 

choiceis available. Most of the regulations under the EUA required for the 

deregulation and retail competition arein place. ATCO Electric, along with 

other industry participants, continues t o  be involved i n  discussions with the 

government of Alberta regarding further amendments t o  the EUA and the 

associated regulations. 

It is anticipated that ATCO Electric's transmission and distribution activities 

will continue to be regulated. 

New Generation 

Under the EUA, generation assets constructed after December 31,1995 are 

not considered part of utility operations and rates are not regulated by the 

AEUB. Allowners of new and existing generating units murt selltheir surplus 

electric energy through the Alberta Power Pool. 

Existing Generation 

The EUA provided for the equalization of corts of "existing generation" that 

wasin serviceat December 31, 1995. OnJanuary 1,2001, existing 

generation was deregulated through a system of long term power purchase 

arrangements ('PPAs"). Under the PPAs, generators are required t o  make the 

generation available to the purchaser of the PPA. I n  return, the generator is  

entitled t o  recover i ts fixed and variable forecast costs for that unit from the 

PPA purchaser, including a fair return an common equity. Many of the 

forecast costs wi l l  be determined by index, formula or other means for the 

entire period of the PPA. There wil l  be no continuing regulation of PPAs by 

the AEUB. 

Tronsmission 

Under the EUA, separate wholesale tariffs for transmission must be approved 

by the AEUB. The transmission tariffs allow any owner of a generating unit t o  

have access t o  the transmission systems in  Alberta and thus facilitate the 

sale of i ts power. The same transmission tar i f f is  charged t o  each distribution 

utility or customer directly connected to the transmission system regardless 

of location. 

The equalization of transmission corts is achieved by having each owner of 

transmission facilities charge its costs to the Transmission Administrator. The 

Transmission Adminirtrator then aggregates these costs and charges a 

common transmission rate t o  a l l  who use the transmission system. 

Distribution 

Under the EUA, separate retail rates for distribution must be approved by the 

AEUB. Costs of distribution are not equalized. The distribution utility 

provides the transportation and distribution services for al l  customers under 

AEUB approved tariffs which provide for the recovery of the cost of service. 

including a fair return on rate base. 

Retail 

Commencing January 1,2001, al l  customers have a choice as t o  the supplier 

oftheir electric energy. Industrialand large commercial customers are 

required t o  select a retailer effectiveJanuary 1, 2001. Other customers may 

continue t o  purchase electricity from their current distribution utility under 

a regulated rate option. This option is t o  be available for five years 

(2001 - 2005) for residentialand farm customers and for three years 

(2001 - 2003) for mallcommercial and smallindustrial customers. 

Recent Decisions - ATCO Electric 

I n  October 2000, the AEUB approved a negotiated settlement relating t o  

ATCO Electric's 2001 and 2002 transmission facility owner tariffs. In  February 

2001, the AEUB approved a negotiated settlement relating to the revenue 

requirements for ATCO Electric's 2001 and 2002 distribution functions. Prior 

to approving the negotiated settlements, the AEUB undertook a process t o  

ensure that the negotiated settlements complied with AEUB guidelines and 

werein the publicinterest. 

The AEUB also approved ATCO Electric's 2001 regulated rate option tariff i n  

three separate decisions. The AEUB approved energy supply arrangemenh. 

non-energy cost components and rates and terms and conditions of service 

effectiveJanuary 1.2001. I n  late 2000, the government of Alberta 

announced that the energy component of the regulated rate option would be 

ATCO 



set at 11 cents per kilowatt hour for 2001. As a result, ATCO Electric may be 

paying more or Less for i ts purchases of electricity than it ir allowed t o  collect 

from its customen. To alleviate this, ATCO Electric will be able t o  apply t o  the 

AEUB after July 1,2001, and, subject to AEUB approval, recover any 

deficiency or refund any surplus commencing after January 1,2002. 

I n  December 2000, the Minister of Resource Development issued a Deferral 

Account Deficiency Correction Regulation and in  January 2001 issued a 

Deferral Account Deficiency Correction Amendment Regulation. The effect of 

these regulationr is that specific distribution deferralaccounts related to 

pool price and energy volumevariance from forecast for 2000 will be held in  

a deferral account. Subject to AEUB approval, the non-current deferral 

account balance, which amounted t o  $86.0 million as at December 31.2000, 

wil l  be recovered from customers during the period from January 1.2002 to 

December 31, 2004. The regulations allow distributors to recover the corts of 

financing the amounts i n  the deferral accounts. ATCO Electric has received 

approval from the AEUB t o  receive a monthly carrying cost paymentan an 

interim refundable basis related t o  these deferralaccounts i n  accordance 

with these regulations. 

The transfer of substantially al l  of ATCO Electric's generating units t o  Alberta 

Power was conditionally approved by the AEUB on December 19,2000, 

subject to a review of the values of assets and liabilities transferred, the 

impact an deferred income taxes and the income tax elections. ATCO Power 

operates Alberta Power's assets pursuant to management agreements. 

L I Q U I D I T Y  A N D  C A P I T A L  RESOURCES 
A major portion of ATCO's operating income and cash flow is generated from 

its utility operations. Canadian Utilities and i ts wholly owned subsidiary. 

CU 1°C.. use commercial paper borrowings and short term bank loans to 

provide flexibility i n  the timing and amounts of long term financing. 

Utility rates designed t o  recover financing corts and depreciation over the 

useful life of the utilityassets assure the availability of funds for debt 

interest and retirement, and preferred share dividends and redemption. 

ATCO Ltd. and Canutilities Holdings Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary, receive 

dividends from Canadian Utilities which have been more than sufficient to 

service debt requirements and pay dividends. 

Cash flow from operations increased by $25.6 million t o  $519.4 million i n  

2000, primarily due to higher earnings before futureincome taxes and 

depreciation and depletion. 

Investing increased from $400.0 million in  1999 to $479.1 million i n  2000, 

primarily as a result of higher capitalexpenditures during 2000 and an 

increasein non-current deferred electricity costs. 

Capital expenditures i n  2000 increased from $398.6 i n  1999 t o  $493.5 

million i n  2000, primarily the result of increased investment in  power 

generation facilities (ATCO Power and ATCO Resources) and pipeline 

extensions i n  the Logistics and Energy Services Business Group 

(ATCO Pipelines). 

At December 31.2000. ATCO had credit lines totaling $989.2 million, of 

which $427.8 million was available on a long term committed basis by the 

lenders, $314.5 million was available on a short term committed basis and 

$246.9 million wasavailable on an uncommitted basis. At December31, 

2000, $292.4 million of long term committed credit lines. $304.4 million of 

short term committed credit liner and $125.5 million of uncommitted credit 

Lines were available to be drawn. 

I n  response t o  increased working capital requirements arising from high 

natural gar prices and the deregulation of the electricalindustry i n  Alberta. 

CU Inc. increased the maximum amount authorized t o  be borrowed under i ts 

commercial paper program from $200.0 million to $400.0 million on March 1. 

2001. The amount of the undrawn committed line of credit which provides 

assurance that CU Inc. will be able t o  make payment of al l  commercial paper 

borrowings has also been increased t o  $400.0 million. 

I n  response to increased working capital requirements arising from growth i n  

nan-regulated operations, CU increased the maximum amount authorized t o  

be borrowed under i ts commercial paper program from $100.0 million t o  

$200.0 million on March 1,2001. The amount of the undrawn committed line 

of credit which provides assurance that CU will be able to make payment of 

a l l  commercial paper borrowings has also been increased t o  $200.0 million. 

Future income tax liabilities of $229.1 millian, at December 31,2000, are 

attributable t o  differences between the hnancialstatement carrying 

amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. These differences result 

primarily from recognizing revenue and expenses in  different years for 

financial and tax reporting purposes. Future income taxes will become 

payable when such differences are reversed through the settlement of 

liabilities and realization of assets. 

I n  May 2000, ATCO Ltd. filed a notice of intention t o  make a normal course 

issuer bid for the purchase of up t o  5% of its outstanding Class I Sharer 

during the period May 25,2000 t o  May 24,2001. To date, no shares have 

been purchased pursuant to this normalcourseissuer bid. 

It is  the policy of ATCO Ltd. to pay dividends quarterly on its Class I a n d  Class 

I1 Shares. The matter of quarterly dividends is  addressed by the board of 

directors i n  the first quarter of each year. For the first quarter of 2001, the 

quarterly dividend payment has been increased by $0.03 t o  $0.26 per share. 

The payment of any dividend is  a t  the discretion of the board of directors and 

depends on the financial condition of ATCO Ltd. and otherfactors. 

B U S I N E S S  R I S K S  

REGULATED OPERATIONS 

ATCO's regulated operations are subject t o  the normal risks faced by 

regulated companies. These risks include the approval by the AEUB of 

customer rates which permit a reasonable opportunity t o  recover on a timely 

basis the estimated costs of providing service, including a fair return on rate 

base. ATCO's ability t o  recover the actualcasts of providing service and to 

earn the approved rates of return depends on achieving the forecasts 

established i n  the rate-setting process. 

The business risks for ATCO Electric have changed with the introduction of 

retail competition on January 1, 2001. Together with the transfer of the 

interconnected generation assets t o  Alberta Power, this stage of 

deregulation leaves ATCO Electric as a regulated transmission and 

distribution utility. 

Beginning January 1, 2001, ATCO Electric is required t o  supply energy to 

certain customersin one of three ways: through the regulated rate option. 

as the supplier of Last resort and as the default supplier. For al l  three types of 

energy supply, ATCO Electricisinvestigating energy procurement strategies 

that mitigate both price and volume risk. 



With the exception o f  the above types of customers, ATCO Electric now 

receiver its revenues from unregulated retailers. As pratechon against bad 

debt, ATCO ELectric has specified certain prudential requirements t o  be met 

by retailers, within limits allowed by Legislation. 

ATCO Electricis obligated to  supply energy under the regulated rate option t o  

the residential, farm and small commerciai customers i n  i ts  designated 

service area who do not  choose a n  unregulated retailer. ATCO Electricis also 

the supplier of last resort for the regulated rate option eligible customers. 

ATCO Electric may purchase electricity from marketers, generators and the 

Alberta Power Poolat fixed and spot prices t o  supply the regulated rate 

option customers. 

ATCO Electric is also obligated t o  assign a default supplier for i ts  customers 

who are not  eligible for the regulated rate option tar i f f  and do not choose an 

unregulated retaiier. ATCO Electric appointed itself as the default supplier 

and purchases electricity from the Alberta Pawer Poal a t  the spot price t o  

supply the default supply customers. 

Effective January 1, 2001, ATCO Electric appointed itself ar the supplier of 

last resort far i ts  customers who are not  eligible for the regulated rate 

option tar i f f  and who do not  have a retailerafter December 31, 2000. 

The energy procurement price far these customers willalso be the spot price 

of the Alberta Power Pool. 

NON-REGULATED OPERATIONS 

ATCO's non-regulated operations are complementary to  its traditional 

regulated businesses and are related to  them i n  terms of skills, knowledge 

and experience. ATCO accounts for i ts  non-regulated operations separately 

from i ts  regulated operations. ATCO's non-regulated operations are subject 

t o  the risks faced by any commercial enterprise i n  those industries and i n  

those countries i n  which they operate. 

By entering in to  long term contracts with purchasers for the output of 

projects and with key suppliers, ATCO i s  able t o  Limitits risk. In the majority 

of power generation and steam sales undertakings to  date, risks i n  respect o f  

fueland energy prices have by contract been agreed and allocated t o  the 

purchasers o f  the electric energy and steam and ATCO has not assumed any 

risksin this regard. 

During 2000, 77.6% o f  the volume o f  ATCO Power's and ATCO Resources' 

natural gas suppiy was purchased under Long term contracts or supplied by 

the purchasers o f  the electricity. During 2001.75% of the volume of ATCO 

Power's and ATCO Resources' natural gas supply is expected t o  be purchased 

under long term contracts or supplied by the purchasers of the electricify. 

ATCO Power and ATCO Resources have financed approximately 80% of their 

non-regulated electrical generating capacity on a non-recourse basis. 

I n  these projects, the Lender's recourse i n  the event o f  default is limited to  

the business and assets o f  the project i n  question and t o  ATCO's equity 

therein. ATCOP remaining non-regulated projects are financed through Long 

term bank credit facilities and from internally generated cash. 

After December 31,2000, substantially a l l  the electricity generated by 

Alberta Power wi l l  be sold pursuant t o  PPAs with EPCOR Utilities 1°C. (Battle 

River generating plant): Engage Energy, a wholly owned subsidiary af 

Westcoast Energy Inc. (Rainbow generating plant): and the Alberta 

Balancing Pool (Sheerness generating plant). Under the PPAs, Alberta Power 

i s  required t o  make the generating capacity for each generating unit  

available to  the purchaser o f  the PPA for that  unit. I n  return, Alberta Power 

is entitled to  recover i ts  forecast fixed and variable costs for that  un i t  from 

the PPA purchaser, including a return an common equity equal t o  the long 

term Canada bond rate plus 4.5% based on a deemed common equity ratio of 

45%. Many of the forecast costs wi l l  be determined by index, formula or 

other means for the entire period of the PPA. The AEUB wi l l  not  regulate the 

PPAs. Alberta Power's actual results wi l lvary and depend on achieving the 

forecasts on whichthe PPAs are based. 

Fuel costs i n  Alberta Power are mostly for coal supply. To protect against 

volat i i i ty in coal prices, Alberta Power owns or has committed under long 

term contra& sufficient coalsupplies for the anticipated lives o f  i ts  Battle 

River and Sheerness coal-fired generating plants. These contracts are at  

prices that  are either fixed or indexed to  inflation. 

HEDGING 

It is the policy of ATCO to  use financialinstruments to  reduce specific risk 

exposures and to  not hold these instruments for trading purposes. 

ATCO has entered in to  severalcontracts i n  order t o  reduce interest rate. 

foreign exchange and commodity price risk. The financialimpact of there 

contracts i s  not  material and the counterparty i n  each transaction i s  a major 

financialinstitution or a significant industry participant. 

March 7,2001 

For those projects i n  Alberta for which there are no Long term agreements for 

the purchase of the power generated, ATCO Pawer and ATCO Resources 

purchase their natural gas supplies on the short term market, as they believe 

that the hourly price o f  power i n  the Alberta Power Poal reflects, and wi l l  

continue t o  be closely related to, the current market price o f  natural gas 

i n  Alberta. 

ATCO 



MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING 

Management is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, management's discussion and analysis 

and other financialinformation relating t o  the Corporation contained in  this annual report. The consolidated financial 

statements have been prepared in  conformity with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles using methods appropriate 

for the industries i n  which the Corporation operates and necessarily include some amounts that are based on informed judgments 

and best estimates of management. The financialinformation contained elsewhere i n  the annual report is  consistent with that in  

the consolidated financial statements. 

Management depends upon internalaccounting controlsystems to rneetits responsibilityfor reliable and accurate reporting. 

These control systems are subject t o  periodic review by the Corporation's internal auditors. 

PricewaterhouseCoopers, our independent auditors, are engaged to  express a professional opinion on the consolidated 

financial statements. 

The Board of Directors, through its Audit Committee comprised of six non-management directors, oversees management's 

responsibilities for financial reporting. The Audit Committee meets regularly with management, theinternalauditors and the 

independent auditors t o  discuss auditing and financial matters, t o  gain assurance that management is carrying out its 

responsibilities and to  review and approve the consolidated financialstatements. The auditors have full and free access to  the 

Audit Committee. 

Senior Vice President, Finance 

and Chief Financial Officer 

K.M. Watson 

Vice-president 

Controller 

AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Shareholders of ATCO Ltd. 

We have audited the consolidated balanced sheets of ATCO Ltd. as a t  December 31,2000 and 1999 and the consolidated 

statements of earnings and retained earnings and cash flows for theyears then ended. These financialstatements are the 

responsibility of the Corporation's management. Our responsibility is t o  express an opinion on these financial statements based 

on our audits. 

We conducted our audits i n  accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we 

plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An 

audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in  the financial statements. An audit 

also includes assessing the accounting principies used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 

overall financial statement presentation. 

I n  our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, i n  al l  material respects, the financial position of the 

Corporation as a t  December 31,2000 and 1999 and the results of i ts operations and cash flows for the years then ended i n  

accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. 

Chartered Accountant5 

Calgary, Alberta 

February 9. 2001, except as to Note 18 

which is as of February 28, 2001. 



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS A N D  RETAINED EARNINGS 
(Millions of Canodian Doliars except pershore doto) 

- 

Revenues 

Costs and expenses 

Natural gas supply 

Fueland purchased power 

Operating and maintenance 

Selling and administrative 

Depreciation and amortization 

Interest 

Dividends on preferred shares 

Franchise fees 100.1 78.2 

2,680.6 2,014.2 

395.4 360.6 

Interest and other income 2 36.5 32.1 

Earnings beforeincome taxes and non-controlling interests 431.9 392.7 

Income taxes 3 193.1 180.8 

Net earnings 238.8 211.9 

Non-controlling interests 4 126.1 111.2 

Earnings attributable to Class I and CLass I1  shares 112.7 100.7 

Retained earnings at beginning of year 609.1 542.4 

721.8 643.1 

Dividends on Class I and Class I1 shares 27.3 23.9 

Direct charges 5 4.7 10.1 

Retained earnings at end of year 1 689.8 1 609.1 

ATCO 



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 
(Millions ofCanodian Dollon) 

ASSETS 

Current assets 

Cash and shortterm investments 

Accounts receivable 

Inventories 

Income taxes recoverable 

Deferred natural gas costs 

Deferred electricity costs 

Prepaid expenses 

Property, plant and equipment 

Goodwill 

Security deposits for debt 

Deferred electricity costs 

Other assets 

December 31 

Note 2000 1999 

LIABILmES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUIW 

Current liabilities 

Bankindebtedness $ 126.2 $ 34.8 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 724.4 327.8 

Income taxes payable 17.1 

Future income taxes 3 55.2 2.5 

Lonq term debt due within one year 8 3.3 3.4 

Non-recourse long term debt due within one year 8 27.4 
936.5 

Future income taxes 

Deferred credits 

Notes payable 

Long term debt 

Non-recourse long term debt 

Preferred shares 

Non-controlling interests 4 1,074.0 1006.6 

Class I and Class I1 shareholders' equity 

Class I and CLass I1 shares 

Retained earninqs 

Foreign currency translation adjustment (2.9) (0.5) 
822.3 744.2 

$ 5,815.6 $ 4,934.9 

C.O. Twa 
Director 

B.P. Drummond 
Director 



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
(Millions of Conodion Dollars) 

Year ended December 31 

Note 2000 1999 

Operating activities 

Earnings attributable to Class I and Class11 shares $ 112.7 $ 100.7 

Non-cash items included i n  earnings 

Depreciation and amortization 253.5 241.0 

Future income taxes 11.9 35.8 

Non-controlling interests 126.1 111.2 

Other - net 15.2 5.1 

Cash flow from operations 519.4 493.8 

Changesin non-cash working capital 12 (146.8) (35.1) 

372.6 458.7 

Inverting activities 

Capitalexpenditures - net (493.5) (398.6) 

Contributions by utility customers for extensions to plant 41.2 45.3 

Non-current deferred electricity costs (86.0) (3.5) 

Changesin non-cash working capital 12 68.5 (14.7) 

Other (9.3) (28.5) 

(479.1) (400.0) 

Financing activities 

Changein notes payable 116.4 (105.8) 

Issue of Long term debt 238.1 372.4 

Issue of non-recourse Long term debt 11.7 64.2 

Repayment of Long term debt (75.8) (130.9) 

Repayment of non-recourse Long term debt (23.1) (50.0) 

Security deposits for debt 2.5 

Redemption of preferred shares by subsidiary (34.1) (96.3) 

Purchase of Class A shares by subsidiary (1.7) (0.6) 

Purchase of Class1 shares (2.4) (10.8) 

Dividends paid t o  Class I and ClassIIshareholders (27.3) (23.9) 

Dividends paid t o  non-controlling interests (71.6) (67.3) 

Changes i n  non-cash working capital 12 (15.3) (1.4) 

Other (10.9) (3.3) 

104.0 (51.2) 

Foreign currency translation (2.9) (5.5) 

Cash position (1) 

Increase (decrease) (5.4) 2.0 

Beginning of year 183.5 181.5 

End of year $ 178.1 $ 183.5 

ATCO 

(1)Cash position includes cash and short term investments Less current bankindebtedness. 



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December31.2000 
(Tobuloromoonts in millions of Conadian Dollorsj 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Financial Statement Presentation 

The consolidated financialstatements include the accounts of ATCO Ltd. and its subsidiaries, including a proportionate share of 

jo int  venture investments ("ATCO"). Principal subsidiaries are ATCO Structures (100% owned) and its subsidiaries, ATCO Noise 

Management (100% owned), ATCO Resources (100% owned) and Canadian Utilities Limited (51.911% owned) and i ts subsidiaries 

("Canadian Utilities"), which mainly comprise the utilities, power generation, and logistics and energy services business groups. 

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to  the current presentation. 

Regulation 

ATCO Electric, ATCO Gas and ATCO Pipelines ("regulated operations") are regulated primarily by the Alberta Energy and Utilities 

Board ("AEUB"), which administers a d s  and regulations covering such matters as rates, financing, accounting, construclion. 

operation and servicearea. The AEUB may award interim rates, subjectto finaldetermination. 

Revenue Recognition 

Revenues are recognized on the accrual basis and include an estimate of services provided but not yet billed. 

Revenues resulting from the supply of contracted products and services are recorded by the percentage of completion method 

Full provision is made for any anticipated loss. 

Natural Gas Supply 

Natural gas supply expense is based on the forecast cast of natural gas included i n  customer rates. Variances from forecast costs 

are deferred untilsuch timeas approvalfrom the AEUBis obtained for refund to  or collection from customers through revised 

rates and natural gas supply expense is adjusted accordingly. 

Purchased Power 

Purchased power expense is based on the actual cost of electricity purchased. The amount included i n  customer rates for 

purchased power is based on forecast, with most variances from forecast recorded as deferred electricity costs. These costs 

remain deferred unti l  such time as approval from the AEUB is obtained for refund to or collection from customers 

Income Taxes 

The regulated operations follow the method of accounting for income taxes that is consistent with the method of determining the 

income tax component of their rates. When future income taxes are not provided in  the income tax component of current rates, 

such future income taxes are not recognized to the extent that it is expected that they wi l l  be recovered from customers through 

inclusion i n  future rates. 

Other subsidiaries follow the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method future tax liabilities and assets 

are recognized for the estimated tax consequences attributable t o  differences between the financial statement carrying amounts 

of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Future tax liabilities and assets are measured using enacted and 

substantively enacted tax rates. The effect on future tax liabilities and assets of a change i n  tax rates is recognized in  income i n  

the period thatthe change occurs. 

Inventories 

Inventories are valued at the lower of average cost or net realizable value. 

Property. Plant andFquipment 

The regulated operations include in  capital expenditures an allowance for funds used during construction at rates approved by 

the AEUB for debt and equity capital. Capital expenditures in  the other subsidiaries include capitalized interest incurred during 

construbion. 

Certain regulated additions are made with the assistance of non-refundable cash contributions from customers when the 

estimated revenue is less than the cost of providing service or where special equipment is needed to  supply the customers' 

specific requirements. These contributions are amortized on the same basis as, and offset the depreciation charge of, the assets 

t o  which they relate. Property, plant and equipmentis disclosed net of unamortized contributions. 



Depreciation is provided on assets on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation rates for regulated 

assets are approved by the AEUB. For certain assets these approved depreciation rates include a provision for future removal 

costs and site restoration costs. On retirement of depreciable regulated assets, the accumulated depreciation is charged with the 

cost of the retired unit, net disposal costs and site restoration costs. 

Goodwill 

Goodwillis recorded at cost and amortized on a straight-line basis generally over 40 years. The carrying value of goodwillis 

reviewed for impairment by estimating future cash flow from related operations over the remaining amortization period. 

Deferred Financing Charges 

Issue costs of long term debt are amortized overthe term of the debt and issue costs of preferred shares are amortized over the 

expected Life of the issue. Premiums paid and unamortized issue costs of redeemed Long term debt and preferred shares of utility 

subsidiaries are amortized over the Life of the issue funding the redemption. 

Notes Payable 

Under bank Loan agreements that are renewed on a continuing basis, ATCO may issue commercial paper or borrow directly from 

the bank. These borrowings allow ATCO to  manage the amount and timing of Long term debt, preferred share and equityissues and 

are classified as long term. 

Long Term Debt Due Within One Year 

When ATCO intends to  refinance long term debt due within one year on a long term basis and thereis a written undertaking from 

an underwriter to act on ATC0's behalf with respect thereto, or sufficient capacity under Long term bank loan agreements to issue 

commercial paper or assume bank Loans, then Long term debt due within one yearis classified as tong term. 

Hedging 

I n  conducting its business, ATCO uses various instruments, including forward contracts, swaps and options, t o  manage the risks 

arising from fluctuations i n  exchange rates, interest rates and commodity prices. Allsuch instruments are used only t o  manage 

riskand not fortrading purposes. 

Gains and Losses are recognized in  incomein the same period and in  the same financialstatement category as theincome or 

expense from the hedged position. 

Employee Future Benefits 

Effective January 1, 2000, ATCO prospectively adopted the recommendations of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants 

on accounting for employee future benefits. This accounting change had the effect of decreasing 2000 earnings by $1.8 million. 

ATCO accrues for its obligations under defined benefit pension and other post employment benefit plans. Costs of these benefits 

are determined using the projected benefits method prorated on service and reflects management's best estimates of investment 

returns, wage and salary increases, age at retirement and expected health care costs. I n  prior years, the cost of other post- 

employment benefits was expensed as paid. Pension plan assets are reported a t  market value and expected return on plan assets 

is calculated based on market values. Experience gains and Losses i n  excess of 10% of the greater of the accrued benefit 

obligations or the marketvalue of plan assets, adjustments resulting from plan amendments, changesin assumptions and the net 

transitional Liability or asset arising upon adoption of this new accounting standard are amortized over the estimated average 

remaining service Life of employees. 

Employer contributions t o  the defined contribution pension plans are expensed as paid. 

Stock-Based Compensation Plans 

ATCO Ltd. has a stock option plan and a share appreciation rights plan, and participatesin the shareappreciation rights plan of a 

subsidiary corporation, Canadian Utilities Limited, all of which are described in  Note 11. No compensation expense is recognized 

when stock options or share appreciation rights are granted. Any consideration paid by holders of the stock options iscredited to  

share capital. If stock options are repurchased, the consideration paid t o  the holders of the options is charged to  retained 

earnings. Compensation expense forthe share appreciation rights plansisaccrued monthly to the date ofvesting on the basis of 

the difference between the greater ofthe market price ofthe ATCO Ltd. Class1 Non-Voting shares and the Canadian Utilities 

Limited Class A non-voting shares orthe 12 month average market price thereof over the basevalue ofthe rights. 

ATCO 



2. INTEREST AND OTHER INCOME 

2000 1999 

Allowance for funds used by regulated operations $ 4.4 $ 4.4 

Interest 28.1 21.5 

Other 4.0 6.2 

$ 36.5 $ 32.1 

3. INCOMETAXES 

The income tax provision differs f iom that  computed using the statutory tax rates for the following reasons: 

2000 1999 

Earnings before income taxes and non-controlling interests $ 431.9 % $ 392.7 YO 

Income taxes, a t  statutory rates $ 192.7 44.6 $ 175.0 44.6 

Dividends on preferred shares 8.0 1.8 10.4 2.6 

ALlowance for funds used by regulated operations (1.0) ( 0 4  (1.0) (0.3) 

Depreciation of capitalized allowance for funds used by regulated 

operations 3.7 1.0 3.7 1.0 

Crown royalties and other non-deductible Crown payments 8.2 1.9 4.2 1.1 

Earned depletion and resource allowance (12.7) (2.9) (6.3) (1.6) 

Large Corporations Tax 7.3 1.6 6.1 1.5 

Manufacturing and processing tax credit (3.9) (0.9) (1.1) (0.3) 

Foreign tax rate variance ( 3 4  (0.9) (5.9) (1.5) 

Non-deductibleinterest on foreign financing 1.7 0.4 1.8 0.5 

Changein futureincome taxes resulting from reduction i n  

tax rates (1.4) (0.3) (1.9) (0.5) 

Unrecorded future income taxes (11.6) (2.8) (2.6) (0.7) 

Recovery of prioryears'income taxes - - (3.6) (0.9) 

Other 5.9 1.4 2.0 0.5 

193.1 44.7 180.8 46.0 

Current income taxes 128.5 146.6 

Future income taxes $ 64.6 $ 34.2 

The future income tax liabilities comprise the  folloving: 

Property, plant and equipment $ 185.6 $ 170.8 

Deferred costs 63.8 12.7 

Reserves (14.8) (9.3) 

Tax Loss carryforwards (3.7) (8.5) 

Other (1.8) 1.9 

229.1 167.6 

Less: Amountsincludedin current futureincome taxes payable 55.2 2.5 

$ 173.9 $ 165.1 

Unrecorded future income taxes o f  the  regulated operations increased by $11.6 million t o  $192.8 million a t  December 31,2000. 

The balance includes $62.1 million i n  respect o f  ATCO Electric's Alberta power generation facilities. Effective January 1,2001, 

these facilities were deregulated through a system o f  power purchase arrangements approved by the AEUB. The unrecorded 

future taxes of $62.1 million w i l l  be recovered through future payments received i n  respect o f the  power purchase arrangements. 

Expected Future recoveries rebt ing t o  tax loss carryforwards have been recorded i n  the  amount of $3.7 million, of which $0.1 

million expires beginning i n  2008 and $3.6 million does no t  expire. I n  addition, a foreign subsidiary has tax loss carryforwards of 

$12.6 million for which no tax benefit has been recorded. These losses begin to  expire i n  2001. 

Income taxes paid amounted t o  $149.9 million (1999 - $143.4 million), 



4. NON-CONTROLUNG INTERESTS 

2000 1999 

Non-controlling interests in  Canadian Utilities: 

Non-retractable 

Cumulative Redeemable Second Preferred Shares, a t  5.3% t o  6.6% 

Perpetual Cumulative Second Preferred Shares, at 4.55% t o  4.66% 

Class A non-voting and Class B common shares 737.5 686.0 

$ 1,074.0 $ 1,006.6 

Nan-controlling interestr in the earnings of Canadian Utilities: 

Non-retractable preferred share dividends $ 16.8 $ 14.9 

Earnings attributable t o  Class A non-voting and Class B common shares 109.3 96.3 

$ 126.1 $ 111.2 

2000 1999 

Class I shares purchased $ 2.2 $ 9.7 

Stock options settled (after income taxes) 1.3 0.3 

Stock options settled by a subsidiary (after income taxes and non-controlling interests) 1.2 0.1 

$ 4.7 $ 10.1 

6. PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

2000 1999 

Composite 

Depreciation Accumulated Accumulated 

Rates Cost Depreciation Cost Depreciation 

Iltilitiw 3.7% $ 3,721.1 $1,365.8 $ 3,546.8 $ 1,261.0 

Power generation 3.3% 2,169.6 645.9 2,044.6 611.5 

Logistics and energy services 4.0% 903.8 288.3 822.3 256.4 

Industrials 9.7% 114.1 37.1 101.3 30.2 

Other 15.5% 63.6 22.4 55.5 14.6 

$ 6,972.2 2,359.5 $ 6,570.5 2,173.7 

Property, plant and equipment, 

less accumulated depreciation 4,612.7 4,396.8 

Unamortized contributions by customers 

for extensions to  regulated plant 444.5 420.2 

Accumulated depreciation includes amounts provided for future removaland site restoration costs, net of salvagevalue, of $212.7 

million (1999 - $187.3 million). 

Composite depreciation rates reflect total  depreciation i n  the year as a percentage of mid-year cost, excluding construdion work- 

in-progress of $198.3 million (1999 - $171.7 million) and non-depreciable assets of $57.8 million (1999 - $45.3 million). 

7. OTHER ASSEIS 

2000 1999 

Deferred pension asset (Note 14) 1 26.4 $, 28.1 

Costs deferred for recovery through future regulated rates 40.0 40.0 

Deferred financing charges 12.7 11.4 

Other 20.5 20.6 

$ 99.6 $ 100.1 
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8. LONG TERM DEBT 

Canadian Uti l i t ies 

Debentures, unsecured - a t  fixed rates of  5.42% t o  12% (weighted average 

interest rate of  8.97%). due a t  various dates t o  2023 

Term credit facility, at  fixed rates of 5.567% t o  5.79% due March 2003 

Term credit facilities, at  Bankers' Acceptance rates, due t o  2003 

Term credit facility, a t  Bank Bi l l  rates plus 0.45%. due March 2001, payable i n  

Australian dollars 

Other long term obligations, at  rates of 7.50% to 8.87% 

ATCO Investments Ltd. 

Term Loan on ATCO Centre 11, a t  prime, due March 2005 

secured by the  building 

ATCO Structures Inc. 

Revolving loan, at  Bankers Acceptance rates plus 0.75% 

dueJuly, 2004secured by property, plantand equipment . " 

ATCO Structures Pty Ltd 

Term loan, at  fixed rate of 5.8%. due December 2003, 

payable i n  Australian dollars 

Term loan, at  fixed rate o f  6.95%. due September 2004, 

payablein Australian dollars 

Less: Amounts due within one year 3.3 3.4 

$ 1,897.2 $ 1,738.1 

Non-recourse (secured only by specific project assets) 

Canadian Ut i l i t ies 

Barking Power Limited project financing, due t o  2010, 

payablein British pounds: 

At fixed rates averaging 7.95% $ 98.6 $ 108.7 

At London Interbank Offered Rate plus 0.5089% 161.8 178.3 

Osborne Cogeneration Pty Ltd. project financing, at  9.795%. due t o  2013, 

payablein Australian dollars 52.0 64.0 

McMahon cogeneration plantterm facility, at  9.135%. due to 2004 13.6 17.5 

ATCO Resources Ltd. (20%) and Canadian Ut i l i t ies (80%) 

Joffre cogeneration project financing: 

At Bankers' Acceptance rates plus 1.25% due t o  2012 15.8 11.3 

At London Interbank Offered Rate plus 1.25%. due t o  2012 20.1 12.9 

At  fixed rate of  8.59%. due t o  2020 40.0 40.0 

401.9 432.7 

Less: Amounts due vvithin one year 27.4 24.6 

$ 374.5 $ 408.1 

The interesl rates disclosed for certain of  the non-recourse debt obligations reflectthe effect of  interest rate swap agreements. 



The minimum annual debt repayments for each ofthe next five years are as follows: 

Non-Recourse 

Long Term Debt Long Term Debt Total 

2001 $ 27.6 $ 27.4 $ 55.0 

Ofthe $55.0 million due i n  2001, $24.3 million is to be refinanced and is, therefore, excluded from long term debt due within one 

year i n  the balance sheet. 

Interest on debt is as follows: 

2000 1999 

Long term debt $ 169.5 $ 145.9 

Non-recourse long term debt 27.3 30.8 

Notes payable 4.1 6.3 

Current bank indebtedness 5.7 4.3 

Amortization of financinq charqes 2.7 3.1 - - 
Less: Capitalized on non-regulated projects (9.4) (5.0) 

$ 199.9 $ 185.4 

Interest paid amounted to $207.1 million (1999 - $176.2 million). 

Fair values 

Fair values for the above debt, determined using quoted market prices for the same or similarissues, are shown below. Where 

market prices are not available, fair values are estimated using discounted cash flow analysis based on ATCO's current borrowing 

rate for similar borrowing arrangements. 

2000 1999 

Long term debt 

Fixed rate 0 2,054.0 $ 1,874.4 

Floating rate 107.1 89.5 

$ 2,161.1 $ 1,963.9 

Non-recourse Long term debt 

Fixed rate $ 257.1 $ 239.9 

Floating rate 161.8 204.4 

$ 418.9 $ 444.3 

9. NOTES PAYABLE AN0 CREDIT LINES 

At December 31,2000, ATCO notes payableincludes outstanding commercial paper of $197.1 million (1999 - $80.7 million), a t  

i n te rs t  rates of 5.92% maturing January 2001. 

ATCO has credit lines totaling $989.2 million, of which $427.8 million are available on a Long term committed basis by the Lenders. 

$314.5 million on a short term committed basis and $246.9 million on an uncommitted basis. These credit lines enable ATCO to  

obtain financing for general business purposes. At December 31,2000, $292.4 million of Long term committed credit lines, 

$304.4 million of short term committed credit Lines and $125.5 million of uncommitted credit lines were stillavailable. 

ATCO 



10. PREFERRED SHARES 

Redemption 

Dates Shares Amount Shares Amount 

CanUtilities Holdings Ltd. 

Authorized and Issued: 

Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Shares 

Series A July l ,  2001 6,000,000 $ 150.0 6,000,000 $ 150.0 

Series B July 1,2001 3,000,000 75.0 3,000,000 75.0 

Series C July 1,2001 3,000,000 75.0 3,000,000 75.0 

300.0 300.0 

Canadian Uti l i t ies Limited 

Authorized: 

An unlimited number of Series Second Preferred Shares. 

issuablein series 

Issued: 

Cumulative Redeemable Second Preferred Shares 

Retractable on redemption date 

6.6% Series S - 2,000,000 50.0 
50.0 

CanUtiIities Holdings Ltd. 

The Series A preferred shares bear a fixed dividend rate of $1.7250 per share per annum. The Series Band Series C preferred 

shares bear a floating dividend rate determined by monthly auctions. 

The average dividend rate on the preferred shares for the year ended December 31, 2000 was $1.4418 (1999 - $1.3949) per share 

per annum. 

CanUtilities Holdings Ltd. w i l l  be required to  redeem the preferred shares on July 1,2001 a t  $25.00 per share plus accrued and 

unpaid preferentialdividends. I t i s  not permitted to redeem the preferred shares priortoJuly 1, 2001. 

Canadian Utilities Limited 

On March 1,2000, 1,364,300 of Cumulative Redeemable Second Preferred Shares Series S were retracted at a price of $25.00 per 

share plus accrued dividends. Effective March 1, 2000, the retraction option expired and the remaining 635,700 Series S shares 

are now redeemable only at the option of Canadian Utilities Limited and, therefore, have been recorded as non-controlling 

interests (see Note 4). 

Fair values 

Fair values for preferred shares, determined using quoted market prices for the same or similarissues, are $301.8 million (1999 - 
$351.8 million). 



11. CLASS I AND CLASS I1 SHARES 

Authorized: 100,000,000 50,000,000 150,000,000 

Issued and Outstanding: 

December 31,1998 26,379,360 $ 134.8 3,668,472 $ 1.9 30,047,832 $ 136.7 

Stock options exercised 23,000 0.4 23,000 0.4 

Purchased (279,200) (1.5) - (279,200) (1.5) 

Converted: Class I1 t o  

CLass I 1.000 0.1 (1,000) (0.1) 

December 31,1999 26,124,160 133.8 3,667,472 1.8 29,791,632 135.6 

Stock options exercised 10,350 0.2 10,350 0.2 

Purchased (80.000) (0.4) (80,000) (0.4) 

December 31,2000 26,054,510 $ 133.6 3,667,472 $ 1.8 29,721,982 0 135.4 

Shareholder rights 

Each Class I1 Voting share may be converted to one Class I Non-Voting share at the shareholder's option. I n  the eventan offer t o  

purchase Class I1 Voting shares is made to  al l  holders of Class I1 Voting shares, and is accepted and taken up by the holders of a 

malor~ty of such shares pursuant t o  such offer, then provided an offer is not made to  the holders of Class I Non-Voting shares on 

the same terms and conditions, the Class I Non-Voting shares shall be entitled t o  the samevoting rights as the Class IIVoting 

shares. The two classes of shares rank equally in  al l  other respects. 

Normal course issuer bid 

On May 25,2000, ATCO Ltd. commenced a Normal Course Issuer Bid for the purchase of up to 5% ofthe outstanding Class I Non- 

Voting shares. The offer will expire on May 24, 2001. 

Stock option p lan 

ATCO Ltd. has a stock option plan under which 2,550,000 Class I Non-Voting shares are reserved for issuance i n  respect of options. 

Options may be granted to  directors, officers and key employees of ATCO Ltd. and its subsidiaries at an exercise price equal t o  the 

weighted average of the trading price of the shares on The Toronto Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately 

preceding the date of grant. The vesting provisions and exercise period (which cannot exceed 10 years) are determined at the 

time of grant. 

Changesin shares under option are summarized below: 

2000 1999 

Class I Weighted-Average Class I Weighted-Average 

Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price 

Options at beginning of year 1,292,450 $ 26.98 912,450 $ 21.34 

Granted 135,000 37.25 423,000 38.26 

Exercised (10,350) 21.72 (23,000) 17.71 

Settled (91,150) 17.47 (20,000) 18.69 

Options at end of year 1,325,950 $ 28.72 1,292,450 $ 26.98 

ATCO 



Information about stock options outstanding a t  December 31,2000 is summarized below: 

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable 

Range of Weighted-Average 

Exercise Class I Remaining Weighted-Average Class1 Weighted-Average 

Prices Shares Contractual Life Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price 

$14.03 to  $23.70 629,700 5.0 $ 18.78 491,650 $ 17.84 

$34.53 to  $37.99 233,000 8.2 $ 36.45 35,300 $ 36.86 

$ 38.18 to  $40.11 463,250 9.0 $ 38.36 138,550 $ 38.32 

$14.03 to  $40.11 1,325,950 7.0 '6 28.72 665,500 $ 23.11 

Share appreciation rights plans 

Diiectors, officers and key employees of ATCO may be granted share appreciation rights under the share appreciation rights plans 

of ATCO Ltd. and its subsidiary corporation, Canadian Utilities Limited. The vesting provisions and exercise period (which cannot 

exceed 10 years) are determined a t the  time of grant. The basevalue ofthe share appreciation rights is equalto the weighted 

average of the trading price of the Class I Non-Voting shares and the Class A non-voting shares, respectively, on The Toronto Stock 

Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant. The holder is entitled on exercise t o  receive a cash 

payment equal t o  any increase i n  the market price of the Class I Non-Voting shares and the Class A non-voting shares, 

respectively, over the base value of the shafe appreciation rights exercised. Share appreciation rights expense amounted to  $9.6 

million (1999 - $2.9 million). 

12. CHANGES I N  NON-CASH WORKING CAPITAL 

2000 1999 

Operating activities 

Increase i n  accounts receivable 

Increase i n  inventories 

Increasein income taxes recoverable 

Decrease (increase) i n  deferred natural gas costs 

Increase i n  deferred electricity costs 

Decrease (increase) i n  prepaid expenses 

Increase (decrease) in  accounts payable and accrued liabilities 

Increase (decrease) in  income taxes payable . . 
Increase (decrease) in  future income taxes 52.7 11.4) 

\ -  , 
$ (146.8) $ (35.1) 

Investing aciivities 

Decrease (increase) i n  inventories 1 0.9 $ (2.9) 

Increase (decrease) i n  accounts payable and accrued liabilities 67.6 (11.8) 

$ 68.5 $ (14.7) 

Financing activities 

Decrease (increase) i n  accounts receivable $ (2.7) $ 1.3 

Decrease i n  accounts payable and accrued liabilities (12.6) (2.7) 

$ (15.3) $ (1.4) 



13. JOINTVENTURES 

ATCO's interest i n  jo int  ventures i s  summarized below: 

2000 1999 

Statement of earnings 

Revenues $ 305.2 $ 265.4 

Operating expenses 191.7 164.4 

Depreciation 20.6 25.3 

Interest 29.7 31.9 

63.2 43.8 

Interest and other income 5.6 7.2 

Earnings from jo int  ventures before income taxes $ 68.8 $ 51.0 

Balance sheet 

Current assek 

Current liabilities 

Property, plant and equipment 

Deferred items, net 

Long term debt 

Non-recourse Long term debt (secured only byjo int  venture assets) (375.1) (408.2) 

Investment i n  jo int  ventures $ 175.0 $ 117.8 

Statement o f  cash f lows 

Operating activities 

Investing activities 

Financing advi t ies 

Foreign currency translation @I) (3.4) 

Increase i n  cash position $ 0.6 $ 11.5 

Current assets include cash of $51.7 million (1999 - $49.6 million) which is  only available for use within thejointventures 

14. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS 

ATCO maintains defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans for most o f i t s  employees and provides other post 

employment benefits, principally health, dental and Life insurance, for retirees and their dependants. The defined benefit 

pension plans, which provide for pensions based on length of service and f inal  average earnings, are for the most part 

contributory, with the balance of  funding the responsibility of ATCO on the advice of  independent actuaries. Plan assets are 

comprised of  Canadian and foreign equities, fixed income and other marketable securities and real estate. As of 1997, new 

employees of Canadian Utilities automatically participate i n  the defined contribution pension plans and employees participating 

i n  the Canadian Utilities defined benefit pension plans may transfer t o  the defined contribution pension plans a t  any time. 



Information about ATCO's defined benefit plans, i n  aggregate, is  as follows: 

Other Post 

Pension Employment 

Benefit Benefit 

Plans Plans 

Market value o f  plan assets 

Beginning of year $ 1,318.2 $ 

Actual return on plan assets 142.8 

Employee contributions 5.8 

Benefit payments (34.2) 

Payments to defined contribution plans (1.6) 
End of year $ 1,431.0 $ 

Accrued benefit obligations 

Beginning of year 

Current service cost 

Interest cost 

Employee contributions 

Benefit payments . , , , 

Experience losses (gains) (10.5) 1.5 

End of year $ 868.9 $ 41.6 

Funded status 

Excess (deficiency) of assets over obligations $ 562.1 $ (41.6) 

Amounts not yet recognized i n  financialstatements: 

Unrecognized net experience Losses (gains) (75.3) 1.5 

Unrecognized net transitional liability (asset) (427.2) 35.1 

Unrecognized defined benefit plansincome (1) (33.2) 

Deferred pension asset (deferred credits) recognized i n  the 

consolidated balance sheet $ 26.4 $ (5.0) 

Weighted average assumptions a t  December 31  

Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.0% 

Liability discount rate 7.1% 7.1% 

Average compensation increase 3.0% 

The assumed annual health care cost rateincreases used i n  measuring the accumulated post employment benefit obligation i n  

2000 and thereafter were 4.5% for drug costs and 4.0% for other medical and dental costs. 

Included i n  the accrued benefit obligations are certain supplementary defined benefit pension plans which are paid by ATCO out 

of general revenues. These supplementary plans had accrued benefit obligations of $48.7 million at December 31,2000. 

Plan assets include Class I Non-Voting shares of ATCO Ltd., having a market value of $9.4 million a t  December 31,2000 (1999 - 
$8.0 million) and long term debt and Class A nonvoting and Class B common shares of Canadian Utilities Limited having a market 

value of $13.4 million at December 31, 2000 (1999 - $11.0 million). 



Other Post 

Pension Employment 

Benefit Benefit 

Plans PLans 

Components o f  benefit plan expense (income) 

Current service cost 

Interest cost 

Expected return on plan assets 

Amortization of net transitional liability (asset) 

Defined benefit plans expense (income) 

Defined contribution plans expense 3.0 

Totalexpense (income) (31.3) 6.3 

Less: Unrecognized defined benefit plansincome ('1 33.2 

Less: Capitalized (0.5) (1.3) 
Net expense 1 1.4 1 5.0 

I n  1999, net income of $4.9 million was recorded for pension benefit plans and net expense of $1.3 million was recorded for other 

post employment benefit plans. 

('1 Unrecognized defined benefit plans income records the effect of the proposed accounting for employee future benefits to be 

used i n  the determination of revenue requirements as fiied on November 15,2000 with the AEUB. ATCO does not expect a 

decision from the AUEB unti l late 2001. 

15. COMMlTMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

ATCO has contractual obligations i n  the normal course of business and in  respect of long term operatirlg lease, lo! manufacturing 

facilities, office premises and equipment. The rentals amounted to  $14.0 million for the year (1999 - $14.4 million). Future 

minimum Lease payments are as follows: 

Total of All 

Subseauent 

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 Years 

$ 13.6 $12.5 $10.9 $ 5.2 $ 4.6 $ 20.8 

ATCO is party t o  a number of disputes and lawsuits i n  the ordinary course of business. Management is confident that the ultimate 

Liabilityarising from these matters wil l  have no materialimpact on the consolidated financialstatements. 

16. SEGMENTED INFORMATION 

ATCO operates i n  the following business segments: 

Uti l i t ies (ATCO Electric - transmission and distribution, Northland Utilities, Yukon Electrical, ATCO Gas) provides electricity 

transmission and distribution t o  industrial, commern'aland residentialcustomersin north central Alberta and parts oftheYukon 

and the NorthwestTerritories and naturalgas distribution toindustrial, residentialand commercialcustomersin Alberta; 

Power Generation (ATCO Power, ATCO Electric - Alberta power generation, ATCO Resources) develops, owns, manages and 

operates electric power projects in  Canada, Great Britain and Australia: 

Logistics and Energy Services (ATCO Pipelines. ATCO Midstream, ATCO Frontec) provides natural gas transmission toindustrial 

and commercialcustomers i n  Alberta, natural gas gathering, processing, storage and hub services i n  Alberta and project 

management and technicalserwces, operation and maintenance, technology transfer and training services t o  the defence, 

transportation and industrial sectors. 



Industrials (ATCO Structures, ATCO Noise Management, ASHCOR Technologies, Genics), with operations in  Canada. Chile, Hungary, 

Australia and the United States, manufactures, sells and leases modular buildings, provides complete noise reduction services for 

industrialfacilities, sells fly ash and produces and sells environmentally friendly wood treatment and maintenance products. 

Other businesses: Technologies (ATCO Singlepoint, ATCO I-Tek) provides billing and call centre services for utilities, municipalities 

and other organizations and builds, operates and supports the information systems and technologies used within the ATCO Group 

of companies; ATCO Investments owns commercial real estate i n  Calgary. 

Business segments 

Logistics 

2000 Power &Energy Other Intersegment 

1999 Utilities Generation Se~'ces Industrials Businesses Corporate Eliminations Consolidated 

.Revenues - external $1,988.5 0 457.4 $ 494.0 $ 131.7 $ 

$ 1,527.1 $ 331.4 $ 348.1 $ 164.0 $ 

Revenues - intersegment(') 

Revenues 

Operating expenses 

Depreciation and 

amortization 

Interest 

Dividends on 

preferred shares 

Interest and other income 

Earnings before 

income taxes and 

non-controlling interests 

Income taxes 

Net earnings 

Non-controlling interests 

Earnings attributable t o  

Class I and Class I1 shares $ 47.9 $ 35.3 $ 21.1 $ 13.0 $ (1.2) $ (11.9) $ (3.5) $ 100.7 

Total assets $2,885.4 8 1,836.9 $ 749.0 $ 120.7 $ 45.7 $ 167.3 0 10.6 0 5,815.6 

$ 2,276.9 $1,639.2 $ 651.8 $ 124.5 $ 44.4 $ 162.1 $ 36.0 $4,934.9 

Capital expenditures $ 202.1 $ 182.9 1 84.2 1 24.0 $ 9.0 $ 0.3 $ - $ 502.5 

$ 188.1 $ 135.4 $ 50.6 $ 32.2 $ 20.3 $ 0.1 $ (11.7) $ 415.0 

(I) Intersegment revenues are recognized on the basis of prevailing market or regulated prices 



Geographic segments 

Domestic Foreign Consolidated 

2000 1999 2000 1999 2000 1999 

Revenues $2,794.0 $2,075.8 $ 282.0 $ 299.0 $3,076.0 $2,374.8 

Property, plant and equipment and 

Goodwill $3,833.4 $ 3,628.5 $ 409.9 $ 426.8 $4,243.3 $ 4.055.3 

17. REGULATORY MATrERS 

On March 2,2000 the AEUB issued a decision on the Canadian Utilities'application forthe 1997 return on common equity and 

capital structure and the general rate application ("GRA") for 1998. As a result of the decision customer rate refunds of $22.2 

million were paid i n  2000. The impact of the decision was to reduce earnings attributable to Class I and Class I1 shares by $6.8 

million, of which $4.7 million was provided for in  1999. As a result ofthis decision, customer rates were also reduced by 

approximately 8% on September 1,2000. 

On December 21,2000 the AEUB approved the withdrawal of Canadian Utilities' 1999 GRA and determined that a 2000 GRA is not 

required. I n  addition, the AEUB ordered Canadian Utilities t o  refund $23.7 million t o  customers for the period of January 1,1999 

to August 31,2000. The refund reflects reduced customer rates as a result ofthe March 2,2000 AEUB order, and reduced 

earnings attributable to Class I and Class I1 shares by $7.0 million i n  2000 ofwhich $4.2 million relates t o  1999. 

Differences between the actual and forecast costs of purchased electricity, aggregating $173.8 million at December 31, 2000, 

have been deferred for future recovery from customers, ofwhich $87.8 million, subjectto AEUB approval, wil l  be collected in  

2001. The Government of Alberta has issued regulations dealing with the timing of the recovery of the balance. Subject t o  AEUB 

approval, $86.0 million wi l l  be recovered over the period from January 1,2002 to  December 31, 2004. 

On December 22,2000, Canadian Utilities conditionally agreed to  sellits Viking-Kinsella natural gas property for $490.0 million, 

before closing adjustments. On January 10, 2001 and February 1, 2001, Canadian Utilities reached conditionalagreements t o  sell 

i ts interest in  several non-operated natural gas properties for $52.4 million, before closing adjustments. Applications t o  the 

AEUB have been submitted requesting approval of these sales and the disposition of proceeds between customers and Canadian 

Utilities. 

18. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

On February 28,2001, the AEUB approved gas cost recovery rates which are expected to  result i n  the fu l l  recovery, during 2001, 

of the deferred natural gas costs of $135.1 million at December 31, 2000. 

ATCO 
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Consolidated Five-Year 
Operating S u m m a r y  

(Dol larsin mil l ions except asindicated) 2 0 0 0  1999 1998 1997 1996 

Revenues 3,076.0 2,374.8 2.077.5 2,045.1 1,934.1 

Casts and expenses 2,680.6 2,014.2 1,733.8 1,719.8 1,615.8 

395.4 360.6 343.7 325.3 318.3 

Interest and other income 36.5 32.1 34.5 29.4 22.7 

Earnings before income taxer 

and non-controlling interests 431.9 392.7 378.2 354.7 341.0 

Income taxes 

Net earnings 

Non-controlling interests 126.1 111.2 102.0 100.3 91.8 

Earnings from 

- .  
Discontinued operations 6.8 

Earnintls attributable t o  

Class I and Class Il shares 112.7 100.7 88.9 81.2 80.1 

Earnings per Class I a n d  

ClarsIIrhare (I) 
Contmuing operations 3.79 3.36 2.96 2.68 2.41 

Discontinued operations - . 0.22 

3.79 3.36 2.96 2.68 2.63 

Dividends paid per Class I a n d  

Class U share (I) 0.92 0.80 0.68 0.56 0.52 

Equity per Chsr I and 

Class I and CLassllrhal-es 

outstanding (thousands) 29,722 29,792 30.048 30.026 30,475 

Market price o f  shares (I) . . 
Class I High 48.00 43.75 39.00 34.00 24.00 

Law 27.50 32.20 30.00 23.50 17.63 

Close 46.65 39.80 39.00 34.00 23.75 

Class 11 High 48.00 43.85 38.00 33.00 24.00 

Low 28.60 33.00 30.25 23.50 17.63 

Close 46.85 40.00 38.00 33.00 22.50 



ATCO L t d .  P R I N C I P A L  O P E R A T I O N S  

POWER GENERATION 

Alberta Power (2000) Ltd. 

ATCO Power Ltd. 

ATCO Power Canada Ltd. 

McMahon Cogeneration Piant 

Poplar Hi l l  Plant 

Primrose Cogeneration Plant 

Rainbow Lake Plant 

Joffre Cogeneration Project 

ATCO Power Australia PTY Ltd 

Osborne Cogeneration Plant 

Bulwei Island Cogeneration Project 

ATCO Power Generation Ltd. 

Thames Power Limited 

Thames Power Services Limited 

Barking Power Limited 

ThanirsVailey Power Limited 

Heathrow Project 

UTILITIES 

ATCO Electric Ltd. 

Norven Holdings Inc. 

Northland UtiGties Enterprises Ltd. 

Northland Utilities (NWT) Limited 

Northland Utilities (Yellowknife) Limited 

TheYukon Electricalcompany Limited 

ATCO Uti l i ty Services Ltd. 

ATCO Gas 

CU Water Limited 

LOGISTICS & ENERGY SERVICES 

ATCO Frontec Corp. 

North Warning System 

Balkans Project 

ATCO Frontec PTY Ltd 

ATCO Frontec Services Ltd. 

T U  CHO Logistics Inc. 

Narwhal Arctic Services 

UQSUQ Corporation 

ATCO Frontec Services Inc. (US.) 

Alaska Radar System 

SSPARS 

ATCO Frontec Logistics Corp. 

ATCO Airports Ltd. 

ATCO Travel Ltd. 

Torngait Services Inc. 

ATCO Frontec Security Services 

ATCO Frontec Property Management 

ATCO Frontec Offshore Inc. 

ATCO Midstream Lid. 

Edmonton Ethane Extraction Plant 

ATCO Pipelines 

TECHNOLOGIES 

ATCO Singlepoint Ltd. 

ATCO I-Tek 

INDUSTRIALS 

ATCO Noise Management Ltd. 

ATCO Structures Inc. 

ATCO Europe kft.  

ATCO Structures Pty Ltd 

ATCO Structures (USA) Inc. 

Tecno Fast ATCO S.A. 

Ashcor Technologies Ltd. 

Genics Inc. 
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R.D. Southern 
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Paitnei. 

BenneltJanei LLP 

Colgoiy, Albert6 

J.E. Barrett 

President, ATCO Noise Monogement Ltd. 
N.C. Southern 

Co-Chaiimon of the Boardand Chief Executive Officer G.K. Bauer 
B.P. Collomb 

Monoging Direitor, Power Generotion 

President, ATCD Power Ltd. C.O. Twa 

President andchief Opeioting Officer 

Choirman ond Chief Executive Officer. 

Loforge S.A.. Pons. Fiance 
R.J. Brouwer 

Prerident, ATCO Miditieom Ltd. 
B.P. Drummond ('1 (2) (3) J.A. Campbeli 

Senior Vice Prerident, Finonce 
ond Chieffinon&l Officer J.R. Frey 

Monoging Diiectoi. Utilities 

President, AiCD Electric Ltd. S.R. Werth 
President, 

Kaioiel Monogement Ltd., Cdgory 
Senior Vice President 

ondChiefAdministrotion OfJier J.D. Graham 

President, ATCO Pipeliner H.E. Joudrie C.R. Armour 

Monoging Direitoi 

Arc0 Group. Auitmlia/Asia/Pacfi 

Chairmon of the Board 

GofCaoado Resource5 Limited, Toronto. Ontoti0 
S.W. Kiefer 

Rt. Hon. D.F. Mazankowski, P.C., O.C., D. Eng., 

LL.D. 
D.R. Cawsey 

Vim President, 

Corpomte Secretory 

R.L. Lambright 

President, ATCO Singlepaint Lid 

D.T. Davis W.A. Kmet 
H.M. Neldner (2) (3) 

Vice President, 

Internal Audit 
Monoging Diiectoi, hdurt r ia l r  

President andchief Executive Officer, 

ATCO Structure5 lnc. 

Coipoiote Director. 

Weiteroie, Alberta 

P.J. House 
N.C. Southern 

Co~choiiman ond Chief Executive Officer. ATCG Ltd. 

R.D.Southern,C.B.E..C.M., LL.D. 

Co-Chairman andchief Exexecutive Officei ATCO Ltd. 

M.M. Shaw vice Pierident, 

Humon Resources Monoging Diremi. 

Logistics and Energy  service^ 
President, ATCO Fmotec Carp. S.W. Kiefer 

Vice Prerident, Information Technology 

ondChiefInfoimotion Officer 
C.O. Twa (31 ( 4 )  

President ond Chief Operating Officer. ATCO Ltd 
C.S. McConnell 

Treasurer 
L.C. van Wachem, K.B.E 

L.J. Vegh 

Vice Prerident, 

Insurance 

Choirman ofthe Supervisory Boom' 

Roy01 Dutch Petroleum Compony, 

The Hogue, The Netherfonds 

01 Member of the Corporate Governance- 

Nomination, Suiceision ond Compensation Committee 

121 Memberof the AoditCommittee 

131 Member of the Risk Review Committee 

K.M. Watson 

Vice President, 

Contmllei 

(41 Member of the Crisis Management Committee 
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